
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
NOVEMBER 21, 2005 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 



TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
 
 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

November 21, 2005 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Jack Mannschreck – Big Beaver 
United Methodist Church 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) National Red Ribbon Campaign – Troy Families for Safe Homes ........................ 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 34551 Dequindre 1 

C-2 Parking Variance – 1414 Combermere 3 

C-3 Rezoning Application – Northeast Corner of Rochester Road and Wattles Road, 
Section 14 – B-1 to B-2 (Z 710) 4 

C-4 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 214-B) – Article IV and X, Approval of 
Group Child Care Homes on a Temporary Basis in the R-1A through R-1E 
Districts 5 



POSTPONED ITEMS:  No Postponed Items 5 

CONSENT AGENDA: 5 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 5 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 6 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 6 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  No Proclamations Proposed 6 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 6 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Installation of 
Street Trees.......................................................................................................... 6 

E-5 City of Troy Investment Policy and Establishment of Investment Accounts 6 

E-6 Request for Acceptance of Four Utility Easements from Gary F. and Brenda 
Abitheira – Sidwell #88-20-22-381-002 and -013 7 

E-7 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed from Deagle Development, Inc. – 
Sidwell #88-20-27-327-005, -006, and -007 7 

E-8 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Watermain, Project No. 
05.902.3, from Southeastern Michigan Chapter, NECA, Inc. – Sidwell #88-20-26-
200-087 7 

E-9 Private Agreement for HCR Manor Care – Project No. 02.935.3 7 

E-10 Request for Acceptance of Two Permanent Easements for Sidewalk from Helpis 
M. Youssef – Sidwell #88-20-15-272-043 and Alexander Mansour – Sidwell #88-
20-15-272-045 8 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 8 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 8 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Local 
Development Finance Authority (LDFA); Planning Commission No Appointments 
Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with 



Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Board of Canvassers; Historic 
District Commission; Liquor Committee; Local Development Finance Authority 
(LDFA); Personnel Board; Planning Commission; and Troy Daze Advisory 
Committee 9 

F-2 2005-2006 Budget Amendment No. 1 17 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 17 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  No Announcements Submitted 17 

G-2 Green Memorandums: No Memorandums Submitted 17 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 17 

H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 17 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 17 

I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 17 

REPORTS: 17 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 17 

a) Troy Historic District Commission/Draft – June 15, 2005 ................................... 17 
b) Troy Historic District Commission/Final – September 20, 2005.......................... 17 
c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – October 12, 2005.... 17 
d) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – October 13, 2005........................ 17 
e) Planning Commission Special/Draft – October 25, 2005.................................... 17 
f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – October 25, 2005.......................... 17 
g) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – November 1, 2005 ........................ 17 

J-2 Department Reports: 18 

a)  Finance Department – City Council Expense Report for September, 2005....... 18 
b)  City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – October, 2005 ..................................... 18 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 18 

a) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Paula Komar Regarding the Efforts 
of Officer Lenczewski ......................................................................................... 18 

b) Letter of Thanks to Tonni Bartholomew and Barbara Holmes from Mary Beth 
Halushka Regarding the November Election ...................................................... 18 



c) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Bettie Goss, Assistant Principal at 
Athens High School, Commending Officer Pokley for His Outstanding Efforts... 18 

d) Letter of Thanks to Tonni Bartholomew from Marilyn Henry, In Appreciation of 
Election Day Visit................................................................................................ 18 

e) Letter of Thanks to Detective Steve Brandimore from the Clackamas County 
Sheriff’s Office Domestic Violence Enhanced Response Team ......................... 18 

f) Letter of Thanks to Kathleen Bobick from Fanica Bleanda, In Appreciation of 
Her Assistance with a District Court Matter ........................................................ 18 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 18 

J-5  Calendar 18 

J-6  Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) – 
Quarterly Report for October, 2005 18 

STUDY ITEMS: 18 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 18 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 18 

CLOSED SESSION: 19 

L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 19 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 19 

Monday, November 28, 2005 Regular City Council .............................................. 19 
Monday, December 5, 2005 Regular City Council ................................................ 19 
Monday, December 19, 2005 Regular City Council .............................................. 19 
Monday, January 9, 2006 Regular City Council .................................................... 19 
Monday, January 23, 2006 Regular City Council .................................................. 19 
Monday, February 6, 2006 Regular City Council................................................... 19 
Monday, February 20, 2006 Regular City Council................................................. 19 
Monday, February 27, 2006 Regular City Council................................................. 19 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA - REVISED November 21, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Jack Mannschreck – Big 
Beaver United Methodist Church 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 
 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:   
a) National Red Ribbon Campaign – Troy Families for Safe Homes 
  
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 34551 Dequindre 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
Proposed Resolution A (For Approval) 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA - REVISED November 21, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 
alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 

 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance:   
              
        . 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Kurt Head, 34551 Dequindre, 
for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a Ford dump truck in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for    
  (not to exceed two years). 
 
Or Proposed Resolution B (For Denial) 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has not found that the petitioner has 
demonstrated the presence of condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance: 
____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA - REVISED November 21, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

____________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Kurt Head, 34551 Dequindre, 
for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a Ford dump truck in a residential district is hereby DENIED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-2 Parking Variance – 1414 Combermere 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
Proposed Resolution A (For Approval) 
 
WHEREAS, Articles XLIII and XLIV (43.00.00 and 44.00.00) of the Zoning Ordinance provide 
that the City Council may grant variances from the off-street parking requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance upon general findings that: 
 
1. The variance would not be contrary to public interest or general purpose and intent of the 

Zoning Ordinance. 
 
2. The variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use as a principal use 

within a zoning district. 
 
3. The variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the immediate vicinity or 

zoning district. 
 
4. The variance relates only to property described in the application for variance; and 
 
WHEREAS, Article XLIII (43.00.00) requires that in granting, the City Council shall find that the 
practical difficulties justifying the variances are: 
 
A. That absent a variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property; or 
 
B. That absent a variance, a significant natural feature would be negatively affected or 

destroyed; or 
 
C. That absent a variance, public health, safety and welfare would be negatively affected; or 
 
D. That literal enforcement of the Zoning Ordinance precludes full enjoyment of the 

permitted use and makes conforming unnecessarily burdensome. In this regard, the City 
Council shall find that a lesser variance does not give substantial relief, and that the relief 
requested can be granted within the spirit of the Ordinance, and within the interests of 
public safety and welfare; and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA - REVISED November 21, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council finds the above-stated general conditions to be present and finds 
the practical difficulty stated above to be operative in the appeal. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Scott Machinski, representing 
Ovonic Battery, for waiver of 3 additional parking spaces at the development at 1414 
Combermere be APPROVED. 
 
Or Proposed Resolution B (For Denial) 
 
WHEREAS, Articles XLIII and XLIV (43.00.00 and 44.00.00) of the Zoning Ordinance provide 
that the City Council may grant variances from the off-street parking requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance upon general findings that: 
 
1. The variance would not be contrary to public interest or general purpose and intent of the 

Zoning Ordinance. 
 
2. The variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use as a principal use 

within a zoning district. 
 
3. The variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the immediate vicinity or 

zoning district. 
 
4. The variance relates only to property described in the application for variance; and 
 
WHEREAS, Article XLIII (43.00.00) requires that in granting, the City Council shall find that 
there are practical difficulties justifying the variances; and  
 
WHEREAS, City Council has not found that the requirements of Articles XLIII and XLIV 
(43.00.00 and 44.00.00) of the Zoning Ordinance have been met. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Scott Machinski, representing 
Ovonic Battery, for waiver of 3 additional parking spaces at the development at 1414 
Combermere be DENIED. 
 
Yes:  
No: 

 
C-3 Rezoning Application – Northeast Corner of Rochester Road and Wattles Road, 

Section 14 – B-1 to B-2 (Z 710) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the B-1 to B-2 rezoning request, located on the northeast corner of 
Rochester and Wattles, Section 14, part of parcel 88-20-14-351-056, being 2.7 acres feet in 
size, is described in the following legal description and illustrated on the attached drawing: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA - REVISED November 21, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

 
T2N, R11E, SW ¼ of Section 14 
 
Lots 9, 10, and 11, except the west 42 ft. of each lot taken for road, also except the south 27 ft. 
of Lot 11 taken for road, and also the west ½ of Lot 12, except the south 27 ft. taken for road of 
Supervisor’s Plat No. 22 (Liber 13, page 45 of Oakland County Records).  Containing 1.65 ac. 
of land, more or less, and subject to restrictions and easements of record. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the proposed rezoning is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-4 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 214-B) – Article IV and X, Approval of 

Group Child Care Homes on a Temporary Basis in the R-1A through R-1E Districts 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Article IV (DEFINITIONS) and Article X (ONE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICTS) of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, be AMENDED to read as written in the 
proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 214-B: Temporary Approval of Group 
Child Care Homes), as recommended by the Planning Commission and City Management. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  No Postponed Items  

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
Moved by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA - REVISED November 21, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:10 PM Special City Council Meeting and the 7:30 PM 
Regular City Council Meeting of November 14, 2005 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  No Proclamations Proposed 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Installation of Street 

Trees   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish and install 2500 street trees for planting in residential 
right-of-way areas is hereby AWARDED to the low bidder, Steele’s Landscape Services of 
Rochester, MI, for an estimated cost of $312,500.00, at unit prices contained in the attached bid 
tabulation opened October 25, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates, and all other 
specified requirements.  
 
E-5 City of Troy Investment Policy and Establishment of Investment Accounts 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Investment Policy and Establishment of Investment Accounts outlined in 
the memorandum from Assistant City Manager-Finance and Administration John M. Lamerato 
dated November 2, 2005 with annual review and approval is hereby APPROVED, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA - REVISED November 21, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

 
E-6 Request for Acceptance of Four Utility Easements from Gary F. and Brenda 

Abitheira – Sidwell #88-20-22-381-002 and -013 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Permanent Easements for storm sewer and sanitary sewer and two 
Permanent Easements for sidewalk received from Gary F. and Brenda Abitheira, owners of 
properties having Sidwell #88-20-22-381-002 and 013 are hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds Office, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-7 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed from Deagle Development, Inc. – 

Sidwell #88-20-27-327-005, -006, and -007 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Warranty Deed for right-of-way from Deagle Development, Inc., owner of 
property having Sidwell #88-20-27-327-005, 006, & 007 is hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
document with the Oakland County Register of Deeds Office, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Watermain, Project No. 

05.902.3, from Southeastern Michigan Chapter, NECA, Inc. – Sidwell #88-20-26-
200-087 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Permanent Easement for watermain from Southeastern Michigan 
Chapter, NECA, Inc., owner of property in the northeast ¼ of Section 26, having Sidwell #88-
20-26-200-087 is hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
document with the Oakland County Register of Deeds Office, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-9 Private Agreement for HCR Manor Care – Project No. 02.935.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA - REVISED November 21, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Health Care & Retirement Corp. of America is hereby 
APPROVED for the installation of water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, paving, sidewalks, 
detention and soil erosion on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City 
Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-10 Request for Acceptance of Two Permanent Easements for Sidewalk from Helpis M. 

Youssef – Sidwell #88-20-15-272-043 and Alexander Mansour – Sidwell #88-20-15-
272-045 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That the two Permanent Easements for sidewalk from the property owner Helpis 
M. Youssef, having Sidwell #88-20-15-272-043, and Alexander Mansour, owner of property 
having Sidwell #88-20-15-272-045, are hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds Office, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA - REVISED November 21, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Local 
Development Finance Authority (LDFA); Planning Commission No Appointments 
Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with 
Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Board of Canvassers; 
Historic District Commission; Liquor Committee; Local Development Finance 
Authority (LDFA); Personnel Board; Planning Commission; and Troy Daze 
Advisory Committee 

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve on 
the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA)  
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval – Council Alternate (2) – Term expires with term of office 
 
 Term expires with term of office 
 
 Term expires with term of office 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
John Szerlag, City Manager 06/30/2007 
Douglas Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 06/30/2007 
Keith Pretty, President-Walsh College 06/30/2008 
Michael M. Adamczyk, Asst. Supt. Business Services-Troy 
Schools 06/30/2008 
Robin E. Beltramini, Council Member-City of Troy 06/30/2006 
Cristina Broomfield, Council Member-City of Troy (Alternate) 11/08/2005 
David Eisenbacher, Council Member-City of Troy (Alternate) 11/08/2005 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME  COUNCIL TERM EXPIRES 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA - REVISED November 21, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

Cristina Broomfield 11/09/09 
Wade Fleming 11/09/09 
Martin Howrylak 11/06/07 
David Lambert 11/06/07 
Jeanne Stine 11/06/07 
Louise Schilling 11/06/07 
 
Planning Commission  
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval (9) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 12/31/08 
 
 Term Expires 12/31/08 
 
 Term Expires 12/31/08 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Gary G. Chamberlain (Does not request reappointment) 12/31/05 
Lynn Drake-Batts (Alt PC Rep on BZA) 12/31/06 
Fazlullah M. Khan 12/31/06 
Christopher Kulesza (Student) 07/01/06 
Larry Littman 12/31/07 
Robert M. Schultz (Requests reappointment) 12/31/05 
Thomas Strat (Requests reappointment) 12/31/05 
Mark J. Vleck 12/31/07 
David T. Waller 12/31/06 
Wayne C. Wright (PC Rep on BZA) 12/31/07 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
James K. Campbell 10/31/05-11/2007 11/14/05 
Kul B. Gauri 07/03/03-07/13/05-07/2007 07/21/03-10/17/05 
Patrick C. Hall 01/26/01-03/10/03-03/2005 02/05/01-03/17/03 
Dan Kaiser 10/18/04-10/2006 11/08/04 
Laurence G. Keisling 04/29/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Chris Komasar 11/14/05-11/2007 11/21/05 
Rosemar Kornacki 07/18/05-07/2007 07/18/05 
David Lakin 01/13/04-01/2006 02/02/04 
Carmelo Milia 06/14/01-06/04/03-10/03/05-09/2007 07/09/01-06/16/03 

David Ogg 
02/09/99-04/16/01-06/09/03-
01/19/05-01/2007 04/23/01-06/16/03 

Joseph M. Polito, Jr. 10/28/05-10/2007 11/14/05 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Jayshree Shah 01/12/03-04/23/04-04/2006 02/02/04-05/03/04 
Frank Shier 02/18/03-02/2005 03/03/03 
Beatrice G. Smits 12/02/03-12/2005 12/15/03 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA - REVISED November 21, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

Lon M. Ullmann 03/19/01-03/10/03-03/2005 04/09/01 
Brian J. Wattles 07/10-01-07/2003 07/23/01 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council  (9 Regular Members; 3 Alternates) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 

(Alternate) Unexpired Term Expires 11/01/06 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Cynthia Buchanan 11/01/07 
Susan Burt 11/01/06 
Angela J. Done 11/01/08 
Adam Fuhrman (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Peggy Hammond 11/01/08 
Theodora House 11/01/06 
Nancy Johnson (Alternate) - Resigned 11/01/06 
Pauline Manetta 11/01/06 
Dorothy Ann   Pietron 11/01/07 
Mark Pritzlaff (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Jeffrey Stewart 11/01/08 
Susan Werpetinski 11/01/07 
(Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Margaret Apte 01/19/05-01/2007 01/24/05 
Kathleen Ann Connor 02/25/04-02/2006 03/01/04 
Mary E.  Freliga 09/21/05-09/2007 10/03/05 
O. Carlene Geier 08/10/05-08/2007 08/15/05 
Renee Uitto 12/03/04-12/2006 12/06/04 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA - REVISED November 21, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
 Unexpired Term 04/30/06 
 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
James Berar 04/30/07 
Burdette L. Black, Jr. (Bud) 04/30/07 
Merrill W. Dixon (Sr Rep for Parks & Rec Board) 04/30/06 
Marie Hoag (Resigned) 04/30/06 
Pauline Y. Noce 04/30/07 
David S. Ogg 04/30/08 
Josephine Rhoads 04/30/08 
JoAnn Thompson 04/30/06 
William Weisgerber (Does not request reappointment) 04/30/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Kathleen Ann Connor 02/25/04-02/2006 03/01/04 
Mary E. Freliga 11/25/02-09/21/05-09/2004 12/02/02 
Kul B. Gauri 07/31/05-07/2007  

Dorothy A. Pietron 
12/21/98-07/10/01-09/21/05-
09/2007 07/23/01 

Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shiva Shakara K. Sastry 07/20/04-07/2006 08/23/04 
Donald E. Schafer 06/08/04-06/2006 06/21/04 
Remedios Solarte 09/15/04-09/2006 09/20/04 
Nancy Wheeler 03/108/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
Board of Canvassers 
Appointed by Council (4) – 4 years 
 

Term Expires 12/31/09 
 
 Term Expires 12/31/09 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Leah Beth Inabnitt (D) (Requests reappointment) Recommendation 12/31/05 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA - REVISED November 21, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

letter rec’d from Oakland County Democratic Party 
Gloria Inglehart (D) 12/31/07 
Mary Shiner (R) (Requests reappointment) Recommendation letter 
rec’d from Oakland County Republican Party 12/31/05 
Carole Webb (R) 12/31/07 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Daniel H. Bliss 03/17/03-03/2005 04/14/03 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Charles J. Salgat 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
Historic District Commission One member must be an architect. 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years Two members-Historical Society recommendations. 
 One member – Historical Commission recommendation. 
 
  Term expires 03/01/08 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06  (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Marjorie A. Biglin 03/01/07 
Wilson Deane Blythe (Does not request reappointment) 03/01/05 
Barbara Chambers (Historical Commission) 03/01/08 
Robert Hudson 05/15/06 
Paul C. Lin (Architect) 05/15/06 
Ann Partlan (Historical Society) 03/01/08 
Muriel Rounds 05/15/06 
(Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Al Petrulis 02/11/03-07/31/03-07/2005 02/17/03-08/18/03 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Nancy Wheeler 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Liquor Committee  
Appointed by Council - (7) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA - REVISED November 21, 2005 
 

- 14 - 

Henry W. Allemon 01/31/06 
Alex Bennett 01/31/06 
Max K. Ehlert 01/31/06 
W.S. Godlewski 01/31/08 
Patrick C. Hall 01/31/06 
James R. Peard 01/31/06 
Bohdan L. Ukrainec 01/31/08 
(Student) 07/01/05 
Capt. Gary Mayer (Ex-officio) 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA)  
Appointed by Council – Council Alternate (2) – Term expires with term of office 
 
 Term expires with term of office 
 
 Term expires with term of office 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
John Szerlag, City Manager 06/30/2007 
Douglas Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 06/30/2007 
Keith Pretty, President-Walsh College 06/30/2008 
Michael M. Adamczyk, Asst. Supt. Business Services-Troy 
Schools 06/30/2008 
Robin E. Beltramini, Council Member-City of Troy 06/30/2006 
Cristina Broomfield, Council Member-City of Troy (Alternate) 11/08/2005 
David Eisenbacher, Council Member-City of Troy (Alternate) 11/08/2005 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME  COUNCIL TERM EXPIRES 
Cristina Broomfield 11/09/09 
Wade Fleming 11/09/09 
Martin Howrylak 11/06/07 
David Lambert 11/06/07 
Jeanne Stine 11/06/07 
Louise Schilling 11/06/07 
 
Personnel Board  
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 years 
 
 Unexpired Term Expires 04/30/06 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA - REVISED November 21, 2005 
 

- 15 - 

NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Deborah L. Baughman 04/30/08 
Albert T. Nelson, Jr. 04/30/06 
Stephen Patrick, Jr. (Resigned) 04/30/06 
Ronald L. Tschirhart 04/30/08 
James E. Vanderbrink 04/30/06 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Patrick C. Hall 06/16/03-05/2005 07/07/03 
Laurie G. Huber 06/18/01-09/21/05-09/2007 07/09/01-10/03/05 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Jayshree Shah 04/23/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Renee Uitto 12/03/04-12/2006 12/06/04 
 
Planning Commission  
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 12/31/08 
 
 Term Expires 12/31/08 
 
 Term Expires 12/31/08 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Gary G. Chamberlain (Does not request reappointment) 12/31/05 
Lynn Drake-Batts (Alt PC Rep on BZA) 12/31/06 
Fazlullah M. Khan 12/31/06 
Christopher Kulesza (Student) 07/01/06 
Larry Littman 12/31/07 
Robert M. Schultz (Requests reappointment) 12/31/05 
Thomas Strat (Requests reappointment) 12/31/05 
Mark J. Vleck 12/31/07 
David T. Waller 12/31/06 
Wayne C. Wright (PC Rep on BZA) 12/31/07 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
James K. Campbell 10/31/05-11/2007 11/14/05 
Kul B. Gauri 07/03/03-07/13/05-07/2007 07/21/03-10/17/05 
Patrick C. Hall 01/26/01-03/10/03-03/2005 02/05/01-03/17/03 
Dan Kaiser 10/18/04-10/2006 11/08/04 
Laurence G. Keisling 04/29/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Chris Komasar 11/14/05-11/2007 11/21/05 
Rosemar Kornacki 07/18/05-07/2007 07/18/05 
David Lakin 01/13/04-01/2006 02/02/04 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA - REVISED November 21, 2005 
 

- 16 - 

Carmelo Milia 06/14/01-06/04/03-10/03/05-09/2007 07/09/01-06/16/03 

David Ogg 
02/09/99-04/16/01-06/09/03-
01/19/05-01/2007 04/23/01-06/16/03 

Joseph M. Polito, Jr. 10/28/05-10/2007 11/14/05 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Jayshree Shah 01/12/03-04/23/04-04/2006 02/02/04-05/03/04 
Frank Shier 02/18/03-02/2005 03/03/03 
Beatrice G. Smits 12/02/03-12/2005 12/15/03 
Lon M. Ullmann 03/19/01-03/10/03-03/2005 04/09/01 
Brian J. Wattles 07/10-01-07/2003 07/23/01 
 
Troy Daze Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 11/30/08 
 
 Term Expires 11/30/08 
 
 Term Expires 11/30/08 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Berj Alexanian (Student) 07/01/06 
Robert A. Berk 11/30/06 
Jim D. Cyrulewski 11/30/07 
Cecile Dilley 11/30/07 
Michael S. Gonda 11/30/06 
William F. Hall (Requests reappointment) 11/30/05 
Kessie Kaltsounis (Requests reappointment) 11/30/05 
Marilyn K. Musick 11/30/07 
Robert S. Preston (Requests reappointment) 11/30/05 
Jeffrey Stewart  Parks & Rec Board Rep   (Also serves on Advisory 
Board for Persons with Disabilities) 09/30/06 
Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski 11/30/06 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
James K. Campbell 10/31/05-11/2007 11/14/05 
Amin Hashmi 08/22/02-09/07/05-09/2007 09/00/05 

Laurie G. Huber 
09/22//00-06/18/01-
09/21/05-09/2007 09/22/00-07/09/01-10/03/05 

Victor Lenivov 04/08/04-04/2006 04/12/0404/28/03 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Frank Shier 02/18/03-02/2005 03/03/03 
Remedios A. Solarte 09/15/04-09/2006 09/20/04 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA - REVISED November 21, 2005 
 

- 17 - 

NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 2005-2006 Budget Amendment No. 1  
   
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That 2005-06 Budget Amendment No. 1 be APPROVED as submitted, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No:  

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  No Announcements Submitted 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums: No Memorandums Submitted  
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Troy Historic District Commission/Draft – June 15, 2005 
b) Troy Historic District Commission/Final – September 20, 2005 
c)  Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – October 12, 2005 
d)  Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – October 13, 2005 
e)  Planning Commission Special/Draft – October 25, 2005 
f)  Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – October 25, 2005 
g)  Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – November 1, 2005 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA - REVISED November 21, 2005 
 

- 18 - 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a)  Finance Department – City Council Expense Report for September, 2005 
b)  City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – October, 2005 
  
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Paula Komar Regarding the Efforts of Officer 

Lenczewski 
b) Letter of Thanks to Tonni Bartholomew and Barbara Holmes from Mary Beth Halushka 

Regarding the November Election  
c) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Bettie Goss, Assistant Principal at Athens High 

School, Commending Officer Pokley for His Outstanding Efforts  
d) Letter of Thanks to Tonni Bartholomew from Marilyn Henry, In Appreciation of Election 

Day Visit    
e) Letter of Thanks to Detective Steve Brandimore from the Clackamas County Sheriff’s 

Office Domestic Violence Enhanced Response Team  
f) Letter of Thanks to Kathleen Bobick from Fanica Bleanda, In Appreciation of Her 

Assistance with a District Court Matter  
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed   
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) – 

Quarterly Report for October, 2005 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA - REVISED November 21, 2005 
 

- 19 - 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 
 

 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, November 28, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 5, 2005 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 19, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, January 9, 2006.......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, January 23, 2006........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, February 6, 2006 ........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, February 20, 2006 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, February 27, 2006 ...................................................... Regular City Council 

 
 
 



 
 
DATE:   November 15, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   34551 Dequindre 
 
 
 
 
On May 26, 2005, Mr. Kurt Head was issued a citation regarding a commercial vehicle 
that was parked on the residential property noted above.  That citation was issued 
because the Ford dump truck parked on the property did not comply with the exceptions 
found in Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00.   
 
In response to the citation, Mr. Head has filed an appeal.  The appeal requests that a 
public hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing has 
been scheduled for your meeting of November 21, 2005. 
 
The existing home on this property has a living area of 1,508 square feet.  Based upon 
the requirements of Section 40.56.01, the maximum size of an attached garage could 
be 1,131 square feet.  The property in question is 73’ wide and 280’ deep.  Based upon 
the provisions of Section 40.56.02, a total of 858 square feet of detached accessory 
buildings could be constructed.  An existing 360 square foot detached garage exists on 
the property.  This means that an additional 498 square foot of detached building could 
be constructed.  
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01









 
 







 
 
DATE:   November 15, 2005 

  
 

 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item – Public Hearing 
   Parking Variance, 1414 Combermere 
 
 
 
 
We have received a permit application from Scott Machinski, representing Ovonic 
Battery Company to install a pair of pre-manufactured storage cabinets in the rear of the 
existing industrial building at 1414 Combermere.  These cabinets take up one parking 
space and eliminate the use of three additional parking spaces.  The existing building is 
9,989 square feet.  Based upon this area of the building, a minimum of 22 parking 
spaces are required per Section 40.21.81 of the Zoning Ordinance.  As proposed there 
would only be 19 parking spaces available. 
 
In light of this 3 parking space deficiency the plans for the installation of the cabinets 
has been denied.  In response to our denial, the petitioners have filed an appeal asking 
for a variance on the parking requirement.  In accordance with Section 44.01.00 a public 
hearing on the request has been scheduled for your meeting of November 21, 2005. 
 
We have included copies of the appeal request as well as the supporting documentation 
for your information. 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



 



 



 



 



 
 







 1

 
DATE: November 16, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development  
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – PUBLIC HEARING - REZONING APPLICATION – 

Northeast corner of Rochester Road and Wattles Road, Section 14 – B-1 
to B-2 (Z 710) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Future Land Use Plan calls for Low Rise Office at this location.  Planning 
Department records indicate that the northern quadrants of the Rochester/Wattles 
intersection were given this designation in 1982 in an effort to indicate an end point for 
the extension of strip commercial development to the north along Rochester Road.  
Prior to 1982, the property was classified as Neighborhood Service.  This rezoning will 
not extend commercial zoning any further to the north or east; rather, it will permit an 
expanded list of commercial uses in an existing commercially viable retail strip center. 
 
The parcel is located at the intersection of Wattles and Rochester Road, one of the 
busiest major thoroughfares in Troy.  The existing B-1 zoning is compatible with 
abutting uses and zoning districts, as is the proposed B-2 zoning.  The commercial 
zoning is bordered by O-1 to the north and P-1 to the east, both districts serving to 
buffer the corner from residential zoning districts.  The potential uses that would be 
permitted under B-2 zoning would be appropriate in this location, including a music 
store.   
 
Most of the parcel has been zoned B-1 since 1954, as shown on the earliest available 
version of the City of Troy Zoning District Map.  It has been used for commercial 
purposes since that time.  The eastern portion of the parcel was zoned from O-1 and R-
1C to B-1 and P-1 in 1985.   
 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of the rezoning request at the 
October 25, 2005 Special/Study meeting.  City Management recommends approval of 
the rezoning request. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
At the October 11, 2005 Regular meeting, the Planning Commission suggested that the 
applicant apply to the Board of Zoning Appeals for an interpretation of the Zoning 
Ordinance, as related to whether a music store is considered a permitted use in the B-1 
Local Business District.  The applicant submitted an application for a rezoning and a 

campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
C-03



 2

BZA interpretation.  The applicant may, at their request, withdraw either application or 
continue both applications.  The interpretation request is scheduled for the December 
20, 2005 BZA meeting. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner and applicant is Matthew Jonna of JLJ Investments, LLC. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the northeast corner of Rochester Road and Wattles Road in 
Section 14. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 2.7 acres in area. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The property is presently used as a retail center.  Tenants include Blockbuster, Papa 
Romano’s, Ridley’s Bakery and Cafe, Fedex Kinko’s and Accent Florist. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
B-1 Local Business District. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
B-2 Community Business District. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant wishes to rezone the parcel to B-2 so that he can lease vacant tenant 
space to Marshall Music.  The Director of Building and Zoning determined that music 
stores are not permitted uses in the B-1 District and are permitted in the B-2 District. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Office and condominium. 
South: Service station and daycare center. 
East: Single family residential. 
West: Bank.  
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: O-1 Office Building. 
South: B-1 Local Business. 
East: P-1 Vehicular Parking. 
West: O-1 Office Building. 
 



 3

ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in the Proposed B-2 Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 
PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 

Any retail business or service establishment permitted in B-1 Districts as Principal 
Uses Permitted and Uses Permitted Subject to Special Conditions, except as 
otherwise provided in the Article, subject to the regulations applicable in the 
following sections of this Article. 

 
Any retail business whose principal activity is the sale of merchandise in an 
enclosed building, except for those limited to or first permitted in the B-3 General 
Business District. 

 
Any service establishment of a showroom or workshop nature, of an electrician, 
decorator, dressmaker, tailor, baker, painter, upholsterer; or an establishment doing 
radio or home appliance repair, photographic studios and reproduction and similar 
service establishments that require a retail adjunct. 

 
Business establishments which perform services on the premises, such as but not 
limited to:  banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, loan companies, 
insurance offices, travel services, and real estate offices. 

 
 Private clubs, fraternal organization, and lodge halls. 
 

Restaurants, or other places serving food or beverage, except those having the 
character of a drive-in or open front store. 

 
Theaters, assembly halls, concert halls or similar places of assembly, when 
conducted completely within enclosed buildings. 

 
Business schools and colleges or private schools operated for profit, not including 
nursery schools. 

 
 Other uses similar to the above uses. 
 
 Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above permitted uses. 
 
 
USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 

Drive-up windows or service facilities, as accessory to principal uses within B-2 
districts, apart from restaurants,  

 
Outside seating areas, of twenty (20) seats or less, for restaurants or other food 
service establishments,  



 4

USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL 
 

Drive-up windows or service facilities, as an accessory to restaurants permitted 
within this district 

 
Bowling alley, billiard hall, indoor archery range, indoor skating, rinks, indoor tennis 
courts, athletic or health clubs, or similar forms of indoor commercial recreation, 
when the subject uses are located at least 100 feet from any Residential District. 

 
Open air business uses when developed as uses subordinate to primary uses and 
structures within the B-2 District as follows: 

 
 A. Retail sales of plant material not grown on the site, and sales of lawn 

furniture, playground equipment and garden supplies. 
 
 B. Recreational space providing shuffle board, miniature golf, tennis, or similar 

outdoor recreation, when part of a planned development. 
 
 C. Outdoor driver training and testing areas on or abutting the site of a driving 

school. 
 

Outside seating areas, in excess of twenty (20) seats, for restaurants, or other food 
service establishments 

 
Facilities within a retail establishment for installation, in vehicles, of items sold at 
retail at that location. 

 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
Access to the parcel is provided on both Rochester and Wattles. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant is proposing to use an existing vacant building.  No construction is 
proposed. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map does not indicate any significant natural features located on 
the property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
Neither the existing zoning nor the proposed zoning complies with the Future Land Use 
Plan.  The property is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Low Rise Office, which 
correlates with the O-1 Office Building District.  According to Planning Department 
records, the parcel was classified on the Master Plan as Low Rise Office since the 
Commercial Area Plan Amendment in 1982, in an effort to indicate an end point for the 
extension of strip commercial development to the north along Rochester Road.  Prior to 
being amended in 1982 the plan classified the parcel as Neighborhood Service Center, 
which is a commercial designation.   



 5

Compliance with Location Standards: 
There are no location standards for the B-2 Community Business District. 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps. 
2. Minutes from the October 11, 2005 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
3. Minutes from the October 25, 2005 Planning Commission Special/Study meeting. 
4. Letter from applicant, received by Planning Department on September 12, 2005. 
 
Prepared by RBS, MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z 710) 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-710 Rochester Rd Retail Center Sec 14\CC Public Hearing ZOTA 710 11 21 05.doc 



JO
H

N
 R

C
R

O
O

KS
WATTLES

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

BIG BEAVER

LIVE
R

N
O

IS

SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE LAKE

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ST
E

PH
E

N
S

O
N

M
A

IN R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

I75

MAPLE



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

REZONING REQUEST
FROM B-1 TO B-2





±

REZONING REQEUST
FROM B-1 TO B-2
EX. 4048-4060 ROCHESTER RD RETAIL CENTER
PROPOSED MARSHALLS MUSIC
NE CORNER WATTLES & ROCHESTER RD
SEC. 14  (Z-710)

REZONING REQEUST
FROM B-1 TO B-2

0 200100
Feet









PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 11, 2005 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 710) – Existing Shopping 
Center (to include proposed Marshall’s Music store), Northeast corner of 
Rochester Road and Wattles Road (4048-4060 Rochester Road), Section 14 – 
From B-1 (Local Business) to B-2 (Community Business) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  He referenced communication from the Director of Building 
and Zoning that provides an interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance as relates to 
B-1 and B-2 zoning.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning request.   
 
Marc Swoish of Purtan & Swoish, P.C., 4198 Orchard Lake Road, West 
Bloomfield, was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Swoish said the rezoning 
change would have no dramatic affect on anyone in the City.  He said the 
rezoning would allow Marshall’s Music to move from its existing location in Troy, 
resulting in a long-time vacant space being leased and a viable tenant remaining 
in the City.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
 
Mr. Schultz asked what zoning district the existing Marshall’s Music store is in. 
 
Mr. Miller said he did not know off-hand but would look it up.   
 
Mr. Schultz referenced the interpretation of the Director of Building and Zoning, 
specifically his comment that Section 20.10.00 states that B-1 zoning was 
established for “day-to-day convenience, shopping and service needs of persons 
residing in adjacent residential areas.”  Mr. Schultz questioned how Marshall’s 
Music, a local business, would not be appropriate when there are two national 
chain stores currently existing in the retail center.  He said rezoning from B-1 to 
B-2 would further the inconsistency of the Future Land Use Plan, and he believes 
that Marshall’s Music is equally consistent in the local business zone as is 
Kinko’s, Blockbuster Video and the florist shop.  Mr. Schultz suggested the 
petitioner apply to the Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) for an interpretation of the 
Zoning Ordinance, and the Planning Commission hold the rezoning request in an 
open state until the end of the month.   
 
Mr. Wright agreed that the existing stores at that location are not local 
businesses but city-wide businesses, and said Marshall’s Music should fall under 
the same classification.   Mr. Wright said he lives on the other side of Troy and 
frequents the various stores in the shopping center.  
 
Chair Strat agreed.  He also frequents Kinko’s and lives on the opposite side of 
the city.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 11, 2005 
 

Mr. Littman noted people from afar and wide frequented a very well known wine 
shop previously located in the retail center.  Mr. Littman cited an unattended 
consequence from the proposed rezoning would be that the entire shopping 
center is bought and developed into something undesirable by the City.  He said 
he would support Marshall’s Music going in the location by a means other than 
rezoning.   
 
Mr. Swoish said discussions with the City led him to believe that the rezoning 
process would be the most expeditious process to take as well as provide more 
consistent zoning for the entire retail center.  Mr. Swoish said he respectfully 
disagrees with the original ruling that Marshall’s Music is not a B-1 use.   
 
Discussion followed on the scheduling of the rezoning request through the 
approval process of City Council, and the time frame to obtain an interpretation 
from the Board of Zoning Appeals.   
 
Mr. Waller said consideration should be given to the reasonableness of having a 
consistent zoning classification for the whole corner.   
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the allowable uses and required setbacks in B-2 zoning. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-164 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission disagrees with the Building and 
Zoning Department’s interpretation of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance related 
to musical instrument sales, rental, service and/or musical instruction.  These 
uses fall within the category of specialty shops (Section 20.20.02) and personal 
service establishments (Section 20.20.03), which are both uses permitted by 
right in the B-1 Local Business Zoning District.  The Planning Commission 
requests that the applicant seek an interpretation from the Board of Zoning 
Appeals. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Future Land Use Plan classifies the 
parcel as Low Rise Office.  Neither the existing B-1 zoning district nor the 
proposed B-2 zoning district is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan.  Prior to 
considering a rezoning request that is inconsistent with the Future Land Use 
Plan, the Planning Commission prefers that the applicant attempt to solve this 
use issue without rezoning the property.  The Planning Commission would 
respectfully request that the Board of Zoning Appeals review this subject during 
its meeting scheduled for October 18, 2005. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the B-1 to B-2 rezoning request located on 
the northeast corner of Rochester and Wattles, within Section 14, being 
approximately 2.7 acres in size, be tabled to the October 25, 2005 Special/Study 
Meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 11, 2005 
 

Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Littman said he would prefer to have the item go to the Board of Zoning 
Appeals for an interpretation.   
 
Chair Strat suggested that the request to be placed on the BZA agenda come 
directly from Marshall’s Music.  
 
Mr. Miller noted the original communication to/from the Director of Building and 
Zoning was with the President of Marshall’s Music Company; the second 
communication was with the representing attorney.   
 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Khan, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts, Littman, Vleck 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Strat announced the Public Hearing would remain open. 
 
Mr. Littman said there is a slim chance for the request to get on the October BZA 
meeting agenda.  He would prefer that the request be handled through the BZA.   
 
Mr. Schultz said nothing in the motion precludes the BZA from acting on the matter 
at its November meeting should it not make the October agenda.  Mr. Schultz said 
the timing still provides the Planning Commission to take action at its October 25 
Special/Study Meeting should it be necessary.  
 
Chair Strat asked what would happen if the Planning Commission took action on 
the rezoning request at the same time the petitioner seeks an interpretation from 
the BZA.  
 
Mr. Motzny said the petitioner would have time to withdraw the rezoning request 
before City Council action, should the BZA overrule the Building Department 
decision.  
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said she has no problem rezoning the property to B-2. 
 
Mr. Vleck said he has no problem rezoning the property to B-2, but would like to get 
the BZA’s interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance.   
 
Mr. Kulesza said he is familiar with the reason that Marshall’s Music wants to move 
the store location.  He questioned the impact any delay in the rezoning process or 
BZA action would have on the music class schedule.   
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 25, 2005 
 

TABLED ITEM 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 710) – Existing Shopping 
Center (to include proposed Marshall’s Music store), Northeast corner of 
Rochester Road and Wattles Road (4048-4060 Rochester Road), Section 14 – 
From B-1 (Local Business) to B-2 (Community Business) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the rezoning request that was tabled at the 
October 11, 2005 Regular Meeting.  The applicant’s request for interpretation of 
the Zoning Ordinance is on the November 15, 2005 Board of Zoning Appeals 
(BZA) agenda.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of the City 
Management to approve the rezoning request.   
 
The petitioner was not present. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-169 
Moved by:  Wright 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To table the item to the November 29, 2005 Regular Meeting to 
allow the Board of Zoning Appeals to address the issue.  
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Wright said he sees no need to rezone the property, and said Marshal’s 
Music store is no more out of place in the B-1 zoning district than Kinko’s, 
Blockbuster, or some of the other businesses in the shopping center.   
 
There was a lengthy discussion and comments from around the table with 
respect to going forward with the rezoning request to City Council, obtaining an 
interpretation from the BZA independently or simultaneously with the rezoning 
request, the intent of the petitioner to remain in the City, and the review of all B-1 
zoning districts.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Littman 
No: Drake-Batts, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller, Wright 
Absent: Chamberlain, Khan 
 
MOTION FAILED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 25, 2005 
 

Mr. Wright said he would support either action that would get Marshall’s Music in 
the shopping center.  He personally feels an interpretation from the BZA would 
be appropriate and the most expeditious action to take.   
 
Members Schultz, Vleck and Drake-Batts agreed that going forward concurrently 
on both the BZA interpretation and the rezoning request is in the best interest of 
the City and most expeditious.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-170 
Moved by: Schultz  
Seconded by: Waller 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission feels that it is of the utmost importance to 
the economic viability of the City of Troy to encourage desirable businesses to 
remain and/or locate in the City.  Furthermore, the City Management should do 
everything within its powers to simplify and expedite the processes businesses 
must follow to establish and/or relocate their operations in our City; 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission disagrees with the Building Department’s 
decision that Marshall’s Music does not meet the criteria for locating within the B-1 
(Community Business) zoning district, while the same department has ruled that 
Blockbuster Video and FedEx/Kinko’s meet those criteria.  While the Planning 
Commission has recommended and requested that the Board of Zoning Appeals 
provide an interpretation of the B-1 zoning district as it applies to Marshall’s Music, 
that interpretation will not take place until Tuesday, November 15, 2005; 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the citizens of Troy to expedite the ability of 
Marshall’s Music to relocate their business to a new facility within the City.  
Furthermore, because the most expeditious means of accomplishing same is to 
recommend the rezoning of the parcel in question from B-1 to B-2 and rezoning that 
parcel does not create a non-conformity with relation to the new zoning distract;  
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby 
recommends to the City Council that the B-1 to B-2 rezoning request, located on 
the northeast corner of Rochester and Wattles, within Section 14, being 
approximately 2.7 acres in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain, Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 









 1

 
 
November 14, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development  
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT 

AMENDMENT (ZOTA 214-B) – Article IV and X, Approval of Group Child 
Care Homes on a Temporary Basis in the R-1A through R-1E Districts 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
On October 3, 2005, City Council adopted a resolution requesting that the Planning 
Commission set a public hearing to consider a proposed amendment that would allow 
for Group Child Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E districts on a temporary basis.  
This would permit Group Child Care Homes on a temporary basis, until after the City 
Council conducts a public hearing on proposed ordinance revisions.  This temporary 
text amendment would be rescinded at the same time that the new provisions related to 
Group Child Care Homes are adopted.   
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item at the October 25, 2005 
Special/Study meeting and recommended approval of the proposed amendment.  City 
Management concurs with the Planning Commission recommendation.   
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Department of Human Services Office of Children and Adult Licensing adopted 
revisions to Admincode R 400.1801, which are the official licensing rules for state-
licensed child care facilities, on September 13, 2005.  Effective January 1, 2006, Group 
Day Care Homes and Family Day Care Homes shall be known as Group Child Care 
Homes and Family Child Care Homes, respectively.   
 
There are approximately 20 Group Child Care Homes currently operating in the City of 
Troy.  While all of these Group Child Care Homes have valid State licenses, they are 
not permitted uses in the City of Troy and therefore are operating illegally.  The 
Planning Commission is currently considering ZOTA 214, a proposed Zoning Ordinance 
amendment to permit Group Child Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E districts.  City 
Management had suspended enforcement of the 20 zoning violations as the Planning 
Commission considered the amendment, but cannot do so indefinitely.  The City 
Charter charges the City Manager with the responsibility of enforcing the laws of the 

campbellld
Text Box
C-04



 2

City of Troy, including the Zoning Ordinance.  The proposed text amendment (ZOTA 
214-B) permits Group Child Care Homes on a temporary basis and eliminates the City 
Manager’s obligation to cite the 20 Group Child Care Homes with violations. 
 
Note that ZOTA 214-B proposes that the definition for Family Child Care Homes be 
updated and a new definition for Group Child Care Homes be added.   
 
The Planning Commission intends to hold a Public Hearing on ZOTA 214 at the 
December 13, 2005 Regular Meeting. 
 
 
Prepared by RBS, MFM 
 
Attachments: 

1. ZOTA 214-B, Temporary Approval of Group Child Care Homes. 
2. City Council Resolution from October 3, 2005.  
3. Planning Commission minutes from the October 25, 2005 Special/Study 

meeting (draft). 
4. Planning Commission Actions on ZOTA 214. 

 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 214 Group Day Care Homes\CC Public Hearing ZOTA 214-B 11 21 05.doc 



   1

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
City Council Public Hearing Draft 

ZOTA 214-B: Temporary Approval of Group Child Care Homes 
 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 of the 
Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2 – Amendment to Articles IV and X of Chapter 39 
 
Article IV Definitions is amended to provide definitions for family child care homes and 
group child care homes.  Article X of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is 
amended to permit group child care homes on a temporary basis by special conditions 
in the R-1A through R-1E One Family Residential Districts.   
 
(Underlining, except for major section titles, denotes changes.) 
 
04.20.60 FAMILY DAY CHILD CARE HOME:  A private residence in which one (1) to 

six (6) children under the age of eighteen (18) are received for care and 
supervision from other than a parent or legal guardian for periods of less 
than twenty-four (24) hours a day, in addition to children related to an adult 
member of the family by blood, marriage or adoption.  Family Day Care 
Home includes a home that gives care to such unrelated children for more 
than a total of thirty (30) days during a calendar year.  A private residence 
that the child care provider lives in and cares for up to six unrelated 
children for more than 4 weeks in a year when the children's 
parents/guardians are not immediately available. 
 

04.20.689 GRADE: the term "grade" shall mean a ground elevation established for the 
purpose of regulating the number of stories and the height of the building. 
The building grade shall be the level of the ground adjacent to the walls of 
the building if the finished grade is level.  If the ground is not entirely level, 
the grade shall be determined by averaging the elevation of the ground for 
each face of the building. 

 
04.20.69 GROUP DAY CHILD CARE HOME: A private residence that the child care 

provider lives in and cares for up to 12 unrelated children for more than 4 
weeks in a year when the children's parents/guardians are not 
immediately available. 



   2

10.25.05 Group Child Care Homes, as defined in Section 04.20.69, licensed by the 
State of Michigan and in operation as of [Date of Approval of ZOTA 214-B 
by City Council], shall be permitted to continue on a temporary basis not to 
exceed 30 days after the Troy City Council has had the opportunity to 
conduct a public hearing and take final action on any proposed revisions 
to Chapter 39, Article X, related to the regulation of Group Child Care 
Homes, as set forth in ZOTA 214. 

  
 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
_______ day of _____________, 2005. 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 214 Group Day Care Homes\ZOTA 214-B CC Public Hearing Draft 11 21.doc 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final October 3, 2005 

              
F-5 Update and Recommendation Regarding Child Group Day Care Homes in 

the R-1A through R-1E Zoning Districts  
 
Resolution #2005-10-466 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Schilling 
 
WHEREAS, City Council adopted Resolution #CC-2005-09-432, which advised the 
Planning Commission to advance, at their September 27, 2005 meeting, a 
recommendation to City Council regarding child group day care homes;  
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing at the September 
27, 2005 Special/Study Meeting, and adopted Resolution #PC-2005-09-152, which 
tabled action on ZOTA 214 to the December 13, 2005 Regular Meeting, and also to 
expedite necessary actions to study this item at the next Planning Commission meeting 
in October.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby 
REQUESTS the Planning Commission to set a public hearing to consider a proposed 
amendment to Chapter 39, Article 10.00 that would temporarily allow for child group day 
care homes, which are State licensed child group day care homes with 7 to 12 children, 
to be located in the R-1A through R-1E Zoning Districts until 15 days after the Troy City 
Council has had the opportunity to conduct a public hearing on any proposed revisions 
to Chapter 39, Article 10.00.  
 
Yes: All-7 
 
 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 25, 2005 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 214-B) – 
Articles 04.20.00 and 10.30.00, Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E 
Districts on a Temporary Basis  
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the Resolution adopted by City Council on October 3, 2005 that 
requested the Planning Commission to set a Public Hearing on a proposed zoning 
ordinance text amendment that would allow group day care homes in the R-1A 
through R-1E districts on a temporary basis.  He said the amendment would 
essentially legalize the approximate 20 group day care homes currently licensed and 
existing at the time the amendment is adopted by City Council.   
 
Discussed at length were the following two conditions of the proposed amendment: 
 

• The date of final action by City Council that would affect the existing group day 
care homes. 

• The timeframe the temporary basis would be in affect after City Council takes 
final action.   

 
Mr. Motzny said consideration and approval of the proposed amendment should be 
based on whether the members believe a public purpose would be served.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
John Bjelobrk of 5581 Mandale, Troy, was present.  Mr. Bjelobrk asked how many 
members of the Planning Commission live next door to or within 300 feet of a family 
or group day care home.  He also asked if any member of the Planning Commission 
has a friend or relative who operates a day care center.  Mr. Bjelobrk said he would 
be willing to swap houses with Chair Strat so he would have the opportunity to 
experience living next to a group day care home.  He voiced concern with the City 
procedure to notify only those residents living within 300 feet of existing group day 
care homes, and said the issue should be placed on a city-wide ballot.  Mr. Bjelobrk 
voiced concern that a fire in a group day care home would jeopardize his family’s 
safety and affect the cost of his insurance coverage.  He asked that group day care 
homes not be grandfathered.  Mr. Bjelobrk addressed traffic, noise, and parking 
concerns, and encouraged parents to raise their own children.   
 
Curtis Childs of 1931 Atlas Court, Troy, was present.  Mr. Childs said approximately 
800 homes have been receiving the Public Hearing notices and very few negative 
responses have come forward.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-   
Moved by: Drake-Batts 
Seconded by: Littman 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 25, 2005 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that Articles IV and X, pertaining to Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A through R-
1E Zoning Districts on a Temporary Basis, be amended as follows:   
 

1. To remove “[Date of Final Action by City Council]” and replace and substitute 
it with “[The Approval of ZOTA 214-B by City Council]”. 

 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Waller asked that the Resolution be amended to change all entries of 10 days to 
100 days, with reference to the timeframe of the temporary basis after the Troy City 
Council has had the opportunity to conduct a Public Hearing and take final action.   
 
A brief discussion followed on the wording of the zoning ordinance text amendment.   
 
Mr. Motzny suggested a recess to prepare the appropriate wording of the Resolution. 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:50 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:02 p.m. 

___________ 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts withdrew the motion on the floor.  Mr. Littman was in agreement with 
the withdrawal. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-171 
Moved by: Drake-Batts 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That group day care homes as defined in Section 04.20.69, licensed by 
the State of Michigan and in operation as of the date of approval of ZOTA 214-B by 
City Council, shall be permitted to continue on a temporary basis not to exceed thirty 
(30) days after the Troy City Council has had the opportunity to conduct a Public 
Hearing and take final action on any proposed revisions to Charter 39, Article X, 
related to the regulation of group day care homes as set forth in ZOTA 214.  
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: Wright 
Absent: Chamberlain, Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Wright said the Planning Department has received several letters from neighbors 
who are opposed to group day care homes because of traffic, parking, and noise.  
Mr. Wright said he personally thinks a group day care home is a commercial 
enterprise that should not exist in a residential zone. 

 



11-07-2005 G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 214 Group Day Care Homes\Planning Commission Actions rev 11 07 05.doc 

Planning Commission Actions on 
ZOTA 214 Group Daycare Homes 

in the R-1 Residential Zoning Districts 

 

MEETING DATE TYPE OF MEETING ACTION 
April 27, 2004 Study Meeting Potential Ordinance Revision Discussion and 

Presentation by Ms. Schafer  
May 4, 2004 Study Meeting Potential Ordinance Revision Discussion followed 

by Resolution #PC-2004-05-052 - Request for 
written confirmation that the Building Dept. 
violation at 5593 Mandale be held in abeyance 
while PC attempts to move forward with ZOTA, 
MOTION APPROVED 

July 27, 2004 Study Meeting Potential Ordinance Revision Discussion  
Sept. 28, 2004 Study Meeting Potential Ordinance Revision Discussion 
March 1, 2005 Study Meeting Brief Discussion after Planning & Zoning Report 
June 7, 2005 Study Meeting Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment Discussion 

followed by Resolution #PC-2005-06-094, directing 
the Planning Dept. not to extend any more effort 
on ZOTA 214, and to look into applicability of the 
State Building Code for family daycare homes to 
see if anything should be done in the City 
Ordinances to clear up potential legalities, 
MOTION FAILED 

June 28, 2005 Study Meeting Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment Discussion 
followed by Resolution #PC-2005-06-108, that a 
Public Hearing on ZOTA 214 be scheduled for 
August 9, 2005 and notices be sent to residents 
within 300 ft. of the existing 19 group daycare 
homes and that City Management provide a memo 
outlining pros and cons on the matter and that 
additional Special Use criteria be developed, 
MOTION APPROVED 

July 12, 2005 Regular Meeting During Good of the Order comments, Mr. Motzney 
provided an explanation to his memo addressing 
the Public Hearing for ZOTA 214 

August 2, 2005 Study Meeting Discussion of House Bill 4398 including Sec. 206 
(4) the requirement to permit conditionally group 
day care homes in residential districts 

August 9, 2005 Regular Meeting Public Hearing, followed by Resolution #PC-2005-
08-131, Planning Commission shall take no further 
action related to group day care homes until State 
Legislature and Governor have taken final action 
on House Bill 4398, MOTION APPROVED 



11-07-2005 G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 214 Group Day Care Homes\Planning Commission Actions rev 11 07 05.doc 

 
Planning Commission Actions on 
ZOTA 214 Group Daycare Homes 

in the R-1 Residential Zoning Districts 

August 23, 2005 Study Meeting During Good of the Order comments, Chair Strat 
notified members that City Manager notified him 
that the State legislature is not going forward with 
modifications regarding group day care homes in 
House Bill 4398 and that Mr. Szerlag requested 
they resume action on ZOTA 214 

September 13, 
2005 

Regular Meeting During Good of the Order comments, Mr. Miller 
notified members that City Council adopted a 
resolution requesting the Planning Commission 
take action on ZOTA 214 at the September 27, 
2005 Public Hearing 

September 27, 
2005 

Study Meeting Resolution #PC-2005-09-150 rescinding resolution 
PC-2005-08-131, MOTION APPROVED.   
Planning Commission then held a Public Hearing 
followed by Resolution #PC-2005-09-152 that the 
Planning Commission hold a Public Hearing for 
ZOTA 214 at the Planning Commission Regular 
Meeting in December, MOTION APPROVED. 

October 4, 2005 Study Meeting Mr. Miller notified members that City Council 
adopted a resolution requesting the Planning 
Commission have a public hearing to consider an 
amendment that would temporarily allow for child 
group day care homes, which are State licensed,  
to be located in the R-1 Zoning Districts until 15 
days after the Troy City Council has had the 
opportunity to conduct a public hearing on ZOTA 
214.   
Discussion of ZOTA 214 B (Group Daycare 
Homes on a Temporary Basis) followed by 
Resolution #PC-2005-10-158, that a Public 
Hearing for ZOTA 214 B (Group Daycare Homes 
on a Temporary Basis) be held at the Planning 
Commission Study Meeting of October 25, 2005, 
MOTION APPROVED. 
Discussion of ZOTA 214, no resolution passed. 

October 11, 2005 Regular Meeting Discussion of ZOTA 214, no resolution passed. 
October 25, 2005 Study Meeting Public Hearing on ZOTA 214 B (Group Daycare 

Homes on a Temporary Basis) followed by 
Resolution #PC-2005-10-171, recommending 
approval of ZOTA 214 B - Group Daycare Homes 
on a Temporary Basis, MOTION APPROVED. 
Discussion of ZOTA 214, no resolution passed. 

November 1, 
2005 

Study Meeting Discussion of ZOTA 214, no resolution passed. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 14, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

A Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, November 14, 2005, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road.  Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:17 PM 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 
 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  Mayor Schilling presented a proclamation on behalf of the City of Troy 
in recognition of Council Member David Eisenbacher’s service to the community. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 

ADJOURNMENT  

The meeting ADJOURNED at 7:28 PM. 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 

 
 

 Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 14, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, November 14, 2005, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road.  Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:39 PM 
 
Reverend Richard Peacock of the First United Methodist Church gave the Invocation and the 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given.  
 
A-1 Presentations: 2005-2006 City Council Convenes:  (a) Installation of New Members 
 
a) Installation of New Members 
 
Members of the City Council who begin new terms will be administered the Oath of Office. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations (con’t):  2005-2006 City Council Convenes: (b) Adoption of Rules of 
Procedure; (c) Appointment of Mayor Pro Tem 

 
b) Adoption of Rules of Procedure 
 
Attached is a copy of the Rules of Procedure, which is subject to renewal and/or amendment at 
this time. 
 
Resolution #2005-11-503 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the Rules of Procedure of the City Council of the City of Troy are hereby 
ADOPTED as recorded by the City Clerk in the Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
c) Appointment of Mayor Pro Tem 
 
Council’s Rules of Procedure address the appointment of Mayor Pro Tem as follows: 
 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 14, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

1. Appointment of Mayor Pro Tem 
 
The selection of Mayor Pro Tem shall proceed in a linear fashion based on seat rotation in the 
following order:  Cristina Broomfield, Martin F. Howrylak, Jeanne M. Stine, David A. Lambert, 
Wade Fleming, Robin Beltramini 
 
Resolution #2005-11-504 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That Cristina Broomfield is hereby APPOINTED to serve as Mayor Pro Tem for 
the City Council of the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: All-7    
 
Council Member Broomfield was administered the Oath of Office as Mayor Pro Tem of the City 
Council. 
 

d) National Red Ribbon Campaign – Troy Families for Safe Homes – The petitioner 
requested that the National Red Ribbon Campaign be rescheduled to appear on the 
agenda of the next Regular City Council meeting scheduled for Monday, November 21, 
2005. 

  
e) Recognition for Outstanding Support from the City of Troy and the Troy Police 

Department by Command Sgt. Major Joseph Haddad – In appreciation of the ongoing 
support of the United States military given by the City of Troy, the City of Troy’s Police 
Department and Troy citizens, Mayor Schilling, City Manager John Szerlag and Chief 
Charles Craft accepted two original prints depicting the legacy and history of the rank of 
Command Sergeant Major by Pennsylvania artist Larry Solomon commissioned by the 
members of Sgt. Major Joseph Haddad’s class at the Sergeants Major Academy in Ft. 
Bliss, Texas. 

 
f) As representative of the three sponsor groups (Fleet Equipment Magazine, Tom 

Johnson and CCG Systems, Inc.) of the 100 Best Fleet Program, Steve Specht, 
recognized the City of Troy’s outstanding fleet operation ranking them in the top ten 
nationally. Mr. Specht added that CCG Systems, Inc. further honored the City of Troy’s 
fleet operation by awarding them with one of their “Hero Awards” at their national 
conference held in Virginia. 

 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  
 
B-1 No Carryover Items 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 14, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Year 2002 Project Description 
Amendment  

 
Resolution #2005-11-505 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy AUTHORIZES the reprogramming of 
CDBG Program Year 2002 funds and to EXPEND our CDBG Program Year 2002 appropriation 
balance of $11,309.85 on Flood Drain Improvements, from Account #3616, Special 
Assessment to Account #2696, Flood Drain Improvements.  
 
Yes: All-7  
 
C-2 Request to Re-program and Waive Recapture of Community Development Block 

Grant (CDBG) 2003 Funds  
 
Resolution #2005-11-506 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy AUTHORIZES Water/Sewer 
Improvements for Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #1, Section 6 be added to the activity 
list of CDBG projects for 2003; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Year 2003 unspent funds should be RE-PROGRAMMED 
from Flood Drain Improvements to Water Sewer Improvements. 
 
WHEREAS, The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) mandates that 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) balances not exceed 1.5 times the current 
program year allocation sixty (60) days prior to the end of the program year (February 28th); and 
 
WHEREAS, The Oakland County Board of Commissioners adopted a policy allowing 
communities to protect funds from their two most recent program years to help comply with this 
regulation; and 
 
WHEREAS, All unobligated 2003 and older funds are at risk of recapture December 31, 2005; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Troy may protect unobligated 2003 funds from recapture for one additional year by 
requesting a waiver; and 
 
WHEREAS, A separate Waiver Request Form must be submitted for each 2003 line item to the 
Manager of the Oakland of the Oakland County Community and Home Improvement Division 
no later than Friday, November 25, 2005. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 14, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy hereby requests to RE-PROGRAM and 
WAIVE recapture of 2003 CDBG funds as follows: 
 

Existing (From):   
Account # ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
803229-2696 Flood Drain Improvements $55,637.70 
   
Proposed (To):   
Account # ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
803229-3824 Water Sewer Improvements $55,637.70 

 
Yes: All-7  
 
C-3 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2006 Application 
 
Resolution #2005-11-507 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy will receive approximately $166,316.00 for Community 
Development Block Grant funds for the year 2006; and 
 
WHEREAS, On November 14th, 2005 a Public Hearing was held before the City Council of the 
City of Troy, at which Public Hearing, persons were given an opportunity to provide written and 
oral views to the Troy City Council, the authority responsible for enacting the budget, and to ask 
questions about the entire budget and the relationship of the Home Chore Program, 
Administration, and Water Sewer Improvements for Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #1, 
Section 6; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy, after conclusion of the Public Hearing on this 
date has determined that funding should be provided through the 2006 Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program for the Home Chore Program; Administration, and 
Water Sewer Improvements for Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #1, Section 6. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Home Chore Program, Administration, and 
Water Sewer Improvements for Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #1, Section 6 are hereby 
DESIGNATED as Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Projects for 2006; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy is AUTHORIZED TO SIGN the 
Application and Subrecipient Agreement and SUBMIT them to Oakland County. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 14, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

C-4 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 201) – Article 28.30.00, Commercial 
Indoor Recreation in the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District 

 
Resolution #2005-11-508 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 201)-Article 28.30.00, Commercial 
Indoor Recreation in the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District be POSTPONED until the Regular City 
Council meeting scheduled for Monday, November 28, 2005 so that City Management can develop 
and present proper definitions of “performance studios” and “performance theaters” for Article IV of 
the Zoning Ordinance to the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
The meeting RECESSED at 8:43 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 8:53 PM. 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2005-11-509 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Items E-5, E-7 and E-14 which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2005-11-509-E-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of October 24, 2005 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  No Proclamations Proposed 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 14, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidders – Traffic Control Signs 
and Posts    

 
Resolution #2005-11-509-E-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That one-year contracts to provide Traffic Control Signs and Posts with an option 
to renew for one (1) additional year are hereby AWARDED to the low bidders, Vulcan Signs, 
Osburn Associates, Inc., Rocal, Inc., Unistrut Detroit Service Co., Allied Municipal Supply and 
Dornbos Sign & Safety, Inc. at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened October 19, 
2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with 
contracts expiring December 16, 2006. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award – Sale of Surplus Parcels    
 
Resolution #2005-11-509-E-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That contracts to sell $562,862.00 of surplus real estate parcels be AWARDED to 
the highest bidders as listed on the attached bid tabulation(s) opened October 26, 2005, a copy 
of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting and are summarized 
below: 
 

Parcel # Sidwell # Minimum Bid High Bid Name of Bidder 
1 20-01-476-032 $340,000.00 $411,000.00 Bassam Askar of Troy 

21 20-26-433-019, 020 $  70,000.00 $  71,250.00 Bostick Real Estate LLC of Warren 
24 20-27-155-013 $  60,000.00 $  66,112.00 Gary Abitheira of Troy 
27 20-34-201-009 $  13,000.00 $  14,500.00 Rick & Renee Van Daal of 

Oakland 
  GRAND TOTAL: $562,862.00  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department may 
EXPEND the necessary funds for title insurance and recording, to be taken from the proceeds 
of said sales, to close and record these real estate parcels; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO SIGN a 
Warranty Deed to be delivered at closing. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 6:  Grant Approval and Authorization to Expend 

City Funds – Radio Equipment    
 
Resolution #2005-11-509-E-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council does hereby AUTHORIZE the Troy Police Department 
to receive a United States Department of Justice, Save our School Grant and EXPEND funds 
for the for the purchase of radio equipment from M/A-Com, Inc. of Lynchburg, VA at an 
estimated cost of $40,000.00 through an Oakland County Contract in accordance with the 
Appendix, Radio Equipment Price Breakdown; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Police Department budget is hereby AMENDED to 
receive grant funding of $40,000.00 so it may be expended on radio equipment described 
above.   



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 14, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder Contract 06-2 – Sylvan 
Glen Golf Course Streambank Restoration    

 
Resolution #2005-11-509-E-4d 
 
RESOLVED, That Contract No. 06-2, Sylvan Glen Golf Course Streambank Restoration, be 
AWARDED to Dan’s Excavating, Inc., 12955 23 Mile Road, Shelby Township, MI  48315 at an 
estimated total cost of $1,128,115.10; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor’s submission 
of proper contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost. 
 
E-6 Amendment #4 – Office Space Rental Agreement – Emerald Food Services – 

Community Center Café/Pro Shop Contract 
 
Resolution #2005-11-509-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That the Addendum #4 to the Original Agreement with Emerald Food Services 
dated March 18, 2002 be APPROVED, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
E-8 Approval of Temporary Trailer – Chuck E. Cheese – 740 John R 
 
Resolution #2005-11-509-E-8 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from Todd Horchner, Director of Training for CEC Entertainment, 
to temporarily place an office trailer for use as a hiring office at 740 John R is hereby 
APPROVED from the date of November 30, 2005, until December 21, 2005, in accordance with 
Chapter 47, House Trailers and Trailer Courts, Section 6.41(2), of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
E-9 Lifeguard and CPR Supplies for the Troy Family Aquatic Center and Troy 

Community Center 
 
Resolution #2005-11-509-E-9 
 
WHEREAS, The American Red Cross is the sole known provider of Red Cross training supplies 
in Michigan; and  
 
WHEREAS, The American Red Cross has been providing training supplies for lifeguard and 
CPR programs and classes at the Troy Family Aquatic Center and Troy Community Center for 
the past year.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase American Red Cross 
training supplies for the Troy Family Aquatic Center and Troy Community Center from the sole 
known provider in Michigan, the American Red Cross is hereby APPROVED at an estimated 
total cost of $18,000.00, expiring December 31, 2006. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 14, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

 
E-10 Private Agreement for Beech Lane Splits – Project No. 05.930.3 
 
Resolution #2005-11-509-E-10 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Deagle Development, Inc., is hereby APPROVED for 
the installation of storm sewer, sanitary sewer, sidewalk, paving and soil erosion controls on the 
site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
E-11 Private Agreement for Fifth Third Bank – Project No. 05.919.3 
 
Resolution #2005-11-509-E-11 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Fifth Third Bank, is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of water main, storm sewer, paving and sidewalk on the site and in the adjacent 
right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-12 Transfer of SDD and SDM License for Atlas Market and Bakery 
 
(a) Transfer License 
 
Resolution #2005-11-509-E-12a 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from MJMN, INC. to transfer all stock interest in 2005 SDD & 
SDM licensed corporation located at 36949 Dequindre, Troy MI 48084, Oakland County 
wherein sole stockholder Masoud Matti transfers 100 shares of stock to new stockholder, 
Kawkab Matti “above all others”; be CONSIDERED FOR APPROVAL. 
 
It is the consensus of this legislative body that the application BE RECOMMENDED “above all 
others” for issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Resolution #2005-11-509-E-12b 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with MJMN, INC. to transfer all stock interest in 2005 SDD & SDM 
licensed corporation located at 36949 Dequindre, Troy MI 48084, Oakland County wherein sole 
stockholder Masoud Matti transfers 100 shares of stock to new stockholder, Kawkab Matti 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 14, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

“above all others”; and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the 
document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-13 Acceptance of Permanent Storm Drain Easement, Permanent Sanitary Sewer 

Easement, Permanent Public Utility Easement, Warranty Deed for Nada Court, 
Covington Estates Site Condominium – Sidwell #88-20-15-201-041 

 
Resolution #2005-11-509-E-13 
 
RESOLVED, That the Permanent Storm Drain Easement, Permanent Sanitary Sewer 
Easement, Permanent Public Utility Easement, and the Warranty Deed for Nada Court, all 
being part of The Covington Estates Condominium project are hereby ACCEPTED.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-15 Contract Amendment #1 – Automatic Meter Reading System 
 
Resolution #2005-11-509-E-15 
 
WHEREAS, On Monday, September 12, 2005, the Troy City Council authorized City 
Administration to negotiate and amend a contract with SLC Meter Service, Inc. of Davisburg, MI 
to expand the scope of work to include 26,000 residential meters (CC Res#2005-09-427). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the contract amendment negotiated by the City 
of Troy with SLC Meter Service, Inc. to provide automatic meter reading system software, 
equipment and services for approximately 26,000 residential meters over a four (4) year period 
expiring December 31, 2009 at an estimated annual cost of $347,035.00, with additional 
equipment purchases allowed for new housing units and commercial /industrial installations for 
a total of ten (10) years through December 31, 2015 is hereby APPROVED, and the Mayor and 
City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-5 Transfer Ownership of a Class C (Quota) License – Spectadium – 2511 Livernois 
 
(a) Transfer License 
 
Resolution #2005-11-510a 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the request from AG SPORTS, INC. to transfer ownership of a 2005 Class C 
Licensed Business with Dance-Entertainment Permit, Outdoor Service (1 area) and 3 bars; 
request new Official Permit (Food) to be located at 2511 Livernois, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland 
County,  from Premier Sports, L.L.C. “above all others”; be CONSIDERED FOR APPROVAL. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 14, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

 
It is the consensus of this legislative body that the application BE RECOMMENDED “above all 
others” for issuance. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Resolution #2005-11-510b 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Stine 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with AG SPORTS, INC. to transfer ownership of a 2005 Class C 
Licensed Business with Dance-Entertainment Permit, Outdoor Service (1 area) and 3 bars; 
request new Official Permit (Food) to be located at 2511 Livernois, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland 
County, from Premier Sports, L.L.C. “above all others”; and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
E-7 Payment of 2006 Membership Dues – National League of Cities 
 
Resolution #2005-11-511 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That the invoice in the amount of $5,953.00 for 2006 membership dues to the 
National League of Cities is APPROVED for payment. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Lambert, Stine, Schilling  
No: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
E-14 Authorization to Publish and Solicit for Public Sealed Bid – Sale of 3 Surplus 

Parcels 
 
Resolution #2005-11-512 
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by Broomfield   
 
RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department, in conjunction with the 
Purchasing Department is AUTHORIZED to advertise to sell by sealed bid to the highest 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 14, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

bidder, at or above the minimum bid value established as the appraised value, the following 
surplus parcels:  
 

Parcel # Sidwell# Appraised Value Type Property 
15 20-23-351-001 & 002  $ 20,000.00 Vacant B-2 
17 20-23-354-048   $ 90,000.00 Vacant B-3 
20 20-26-429-045 $18,000.00 Vacant M-1 

 
Yes: All-7  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments: Southeastern Michigan 
Council of Governments (SEMCOG) 

 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled 
 
(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG) 
Appointed by Council - (1 Council Member) – 2 years 
 
Robin Beltramini Term Expires 11/14/07 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2005-11-513 
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution to appoint a Delegate to the Southeastern Michigan Council of 
Governments (SEMCOG) be AMENDED by INSERTING Mark Miller as the alternate delegate.  
 
Yes: All-7  
(b)  Vote on City Council Appointments to SEMCOG as Amended 
 
Resolution #2005-11-514 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 14, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 

 
Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG) 
Appointed by Council - (1 Council Member) – 2 years 
 
Robin Beltramini Term Expires 11/14/07 
  
Mark Miller (Alternate)  Term Expires 11/14/07 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-2 Purchase of Replacement Ladder Truck 
 
Resolution #2005-11-515 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
WHEREAS, On Monday, September 12, 2005, the Troy City Council authorized City 
Administration to negotiate the purchase of an aerial ladder truck (CC Res#2005-09-425) with 
Sutphen Corporation of Amlin, Ohio. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the purchase of one (1) aerial platform ladder 
truck from Sutphen Corporation of Amlin, OH is hereby APPROVED at an estimated cost of 
$769,522.00. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-3 Traffic Committee Recommendations – October 19, 2005 
 
Resolution #2005-11-516 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
a) No Changes at Glyndebourne and Red Maple 
 
RESOLVED, That NO CHANGES be made at Glyndebourne and Red Maple as the warrants 
for a four (4) way stop have not been met. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 14, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

b) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Two Away Zones at Midtown Square Condos – Maple 
and Coolidge 

 
RESOLVED, That fire lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch BE ESTABLISHED 
at Midtown Square Condos, Maple and Coolidge. 
 
Yes: All-7  

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 34551 Dequindre – November 21, 2005  
b) Parking Variance – 1414 Combermere – November 21, 2005  
c) Rezoning Application – Northeast Corner of Rochester Road and Wattles Road, Section 

14 – B-1 to B-2 (Z 710) – November 21, 2005  
d) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 214-B) – Article IV and X, Approval of Group 

Child Care Homes on a Temporary Basis in the R-1A through R-1E Districts – November 
21, 2005 

Noted and Filed 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums:   
a) 2005 Troy Daze 

Noted and Filed 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals   
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Board of Canvassers/Final – April 6, 2004 
b) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – August 10, 2004 
c) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – May 12, 2005  
d) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – September 1, 2005   
e) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – September 14, 2005  
f) Library Board/Final – September 15, 2005 
g) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – September 20, 2005 
h) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – September 20, 2005  
i) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – September 27, 2005  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 14, 2005 
 

- 14 - 

j) Troy Youth Council/Final – September 28, 2005  
k) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – October 4, 2005 
l) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – October 4, 2005  
m) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 4, 2005  
n) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – October 5, 2005  
o) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – October 5, 2005 
p) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – October 5, 2005  
q) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – October 5, 2005  
r) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – October 6, 2005 
s) Planning Commission Regular/Draft – October 11, 2005  
t) Planning Commission Regular/Final – October 11, 2005 
u) Library Advisory Board/Draft – October 13, 2005 
v) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Draft – October 17, 2005  
w) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – October 18, 2005  
x) Troy Youth Council/Draft – October 26, 2005  
y) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – November 3, 2005 
z) Board of Canvassers/Draft – November 9, 2005  
aa) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – November 9, 2005 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) 2006 Sanctuary Lake League Rates  
b) City of Troy Quarterly Financial Report – September 30, 2005  
c) Council Member Lambert’s Travel Expense Report for the Michigan Municipal League 

Annual Meeting  
d) Police Department - 2005 Year-to-Date Crime and Calls for Service Report  
e) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of October, 2005  
f) City Attorney’s Office – 2005 Third Quarter Litigation Report  
g) Library Rankings  
h) Real Estate and Development Department – Ford and Earl Property  
i) Planning Department – Status of Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 216) – 

Additional Retail Along Major Thoroughfares in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District 
Noted and Filed 

 

 J-3 Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter to Chief Craft from Dan DeWolf Regarding the Professionalism and Efforts of 

Officer Villerot  
b) Certificate of Appreciation to John M. Lamerato from the Michigan Government Finance 

Officers Association Mentoring Program Committee  
c) Letter of Appreciation from the Troy Daze Festival Committee to Mayor Schilling and City 

Council, Thanking Department Directors Carol Anderson, Tim Richnak, Chief Craft, Chief 
Nelson, Jeanette Bennett and Cindy Stewart and Their Staff for the Assistance with the 
Troy Daze Festival  

d) Letter of Appreciation from the Troy Daze Festival Committee to John Szerlag, Thanking 
Carol Anderson, Jeff Biegler and the Parks and Recreation Staff for Their Contributions 
with the Troy Daze Festival  

e) Letter of Appreciation from the Troy Daze Festival Committee to John Szerlag, Thanking 
Chief Craft, Captain Mayer, Lt. Scherlinck, Sgt. Kowalski, Officer Harrison, Officer 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 14, 2005 
 

- 15 - 

Lepola, Mick Gobler, the Directed Patrol Unit, the Community Services Section, Officers 
from the Patrol Division, Police Service Aides, and the Explorers Unit for Their 
Assistance with the Troy Daze Festival  

f) Letter of Appreciation from the Troy Daze Festival Committee to John Szerlag, Thanking 
Chief Nelson, Fire Department Liason Bob Matlick, Tonya Perry, Rod Bovensiep, Yanuz 
Bora, Chuck Reisterer, Eric Caloia, Bill McNabb and Dave Roberts for Their Assistance 
with the Troy Daze Festival  

g) Letter of Appreciation from the Troy Daze Festival Committee to John Szerlag, Thanking 
Tim Richnak, Tom Rosewarne, Duane Blucher, Todd Culver, Doug Billings, Tracey 
Crane, Larry Holmes, Jonathan King and John Zawojskyj for Their Assistance in Setting 
up and Tearing Down the Troy Daze Festival 

h) Letter of Appreciation from the Troy Daze Festival Committee to John Szerlag, Thanking 
Cindy Stewart, Andrea Herzog, Sue Davis, Shawn Polito, Matt Rundell, Chuck Davis and 
Jeff Verhoef for Their Contributions with the Troy Daze Festival  

i) Letter of Appreciation from Deborah Barczyk to the Troy Fire Department, Thanking 
Karen Lawson for the Fire Safety Presentation  

j) Letter of Thanks to Susan Lancaster from Jeannie Niland, Michigan Association of Code 
Enforcement Officers, In Appreciation of Her Presentation  

k) Letter of Appreciation to Brian Goul from Edith Andersen Regarding Mario Walden  
l) Letter of Thanks to Chief Nelson from Kelly McConnell, Briarwood Manor Homeowners 

Association, In Appreciation of Firefighter Merian and the Troy Fire Department  
m) Letter of Appreciation to Sgt. Zielinski from Paul Scobie, Troy Youth Assistance, 

Thanking Sgt. Zielinski for His Presentation  
n) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Ann Strecker Regarding the Efforts of Officer 

Dungien and the Troy Police Department  
o) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Michael Bouchard, Oakland County Sheriff, In 

Appreciation of the Assistance by the Troy Police Department  
Noted and Filed 

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed   
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-6  Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of the Detroit Edison Company – 

Case No. U-14702 
Noted and Filed 

 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION:  No Closed Session Requested 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 14, 2005 
 

- 16 - 

ADJOURNMENT  

The meeting ADJOURNED at 9:29 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 

 
 

 Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 



 
 
November 15, 2005 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – Award To Low 

Bidder – Installation of Street Trees  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On October 25, 2005, sealed bid proposals were opened to furnish and install an 
estimated 2500 bare root Street Trees for residential Right-of-Way areas.  After 
reviewing these proposals, City management recommends awarding the contract 
to the low bidder, Steele’s Services of Rochester, MI, for an estimated cost of 
$312,500.00 at unit prices contained in the attached bid tabulation.  The contract 
will commence in late winter, early spring of 2005/2006, when trees are still 
dormant. 
 
SUMMARY 
The contract will be to furnish and install 2500 bare root trees between the 
sidewalk and curb in front of Troy homes.  At no time will a monoculture be 
created by the new plantings.  This planting is in response to the significant loss 
of ash tree from emerald ash borer.   
 
BUDGET 
Funds for these materials will be available through the Parks and Recreation 
Capital account #401780.7974.130 for Subdivision Improvements.  
 
 
64 Vendors Notified on MITN System 
  4 Bid Responses Rec’d 

1 No Bid: (1) Company could not bid due to their busy spring schedule.  
  

 
 
Prepared by:  Ron Hynd, Landscape Analyst 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a



CITY OF TROY
Opening Date -- 10-25-05 BID TABULATION ITB-COT 05-48
Date Prepared -- 11/4/05 STREET TREES

VENDOR NAME: * STEELE'S MARINE CITY SOULLIERE NURSERY
SERVICES NURSERY CO YARD CARE MERCHANT, INC

CHECK #: 001979 467 5704246 726010329 062268
CHECK AMOUNT: 2,000.00$       2,000.00$       2,000.00$        2,000.00$        

PROPOSAL:  To Provide and Install for the City of Troy an Estimated 2500 Bare Root Street Trees-Spring 2006
In Accordance with the Specifications

PRICE PER TREE INSTALLATION 125.00$          134.00$           145.00$           159.00$            

ESTIMATED TOTAL COST FOR 2500 TREES  * 312,500.00$    335,000.00$    362,500.00$    397,500.00$     

CONTACT INFORMATION Hrs of Operation 8-5pm 8-5pm 8-5pm 8-4pm
Phone Number (248)852-6140 (810)560-9099 (810)798-8006 (734)761-1774

LIST OF NINE TREE TYPES Y or N YES YES YES YES
How many listed: NINE TWELVE NINE TEN

STATEMENT OF GUARANTEE Y or N ONE YEAR AS SPECIFIED ONE YEAR AS SPECIFIED

INSURANCE Can meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot meet

DELIVERY 5/30/06 LATEST AS SPECIFIED BY HAND FOB TROY, MI

TERMS 10 PROX NET 30 NET 30 DAYS BLANK NET 30 DAYS

GUARANTEE As Specified As Specified As Specified As Specified

EXCEPTIONS BLANK BLANK BLANK LISTED IN BID

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N YES YES YES YES

NO BIDS:
  Sherman Nursery Farms * DENOTES LOW BIDDER

ATTEST:
  Charlene McComb
  Ron Hynd __________________________
  Linda Bockstanz Jeanette Bennett

Purchasing Director

G:ITB-COT 05-48 STREET TREES INSTALLED









November 2, 2005 
 
 

 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
 
SUBJECT:  City of Troy Investment Policy and Establishment of  

Investment Accounts 
 
 
 
 
The current investment policy was initially approved in November 1999 and each year 
thereafter with the stipulation that it be reviewed and approved annually by City Council. 
 
The current policy has served us well during the past year and is in compliance with Act 20 
PA 1943, as amended, therefore I'm not requesting any changes at this time and recommend 
that the City Council approve the City of Troy investment policy for another year. 
 
I would also like to update our resolution authorizing the establishment of investment 
accounts at the following institutions: Charter One, Citizens Bank, Comerica Bank, Fifth Third 
Bank, Flagstar Bank, Huntington National Bank, Independent Bank, JP Morgan Chase Bank, 
LaSalle Bank, Merrill Lynch, Michigan Class-MBIA, Michigan Heritage Bank, Mischler 
Financial Group, National City Bank, Republic Bank, Salomon Smith Barney, TCF Bank, and 
The Private Bank. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2005\11.14.05 – Investment Policy 

campbellld
Text Box
E-05



CITY OF TROY INVESTMENT POLICY 
To Comply with Act 20 PA 1943, as amended 

 
 
Purpose:  It is the policy of the City of Troy to invest its funds in a manner which will 
provide the highest investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily 
cash flow needs of the City and comply with all State statutes governing the investment of 
public funds. 
 
Scope:  This investment policy applies to all financial assets of the City.  These assets are 
accounted for in the various funds of the City and include the general fund, special 
revenue funds, debt service funds, and capital project funds (unless bond ordinances and 
resolutions are more restrictive), enterprise funds, internal service funds, trust and agency 
funds, and any new fund established by the City. 
 
Objectives:  The primary objectives, in priority order, of the City’s investment activities 
shall be: 
 
 Safety – Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.  

Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to insure the preservation 
of capital in the overall portfolio. 

 
 Diversification – The investments will be diversified by security type and institution, 

in order that potential losses on individual securities do not exceed the income 
generated from the remainder of the portfolio. 

 
 Liquidity – The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all 

operating requirements that may be reasonably anticipated. 
 
 Return on Investment – The investment portfolio shall be designed with the 

objective of obtaining a rate of return throughout the budgetary and economic 
cycles, taking into account the investment risk constraints and the cash flow 
characteristics of the portfolio. 

 
Delegation of Authority to Make Investments:  Authority to manage the investment 
program is derived from the following:  City of Troy City Council’s most current resolution 
establishing investment accounts (2004-11-576-E-24).  Management responsibility for the 
investment program is hereby delegated to the City of Troy Assistant City Manager/ 
Finance and Administration who shall establish written procedures and internal controls for 
the operation of the investment program consistent with this investment policy.  
Procedures should include references to safekeeping, cash purchase or delivery vs. 
payment, investment accounting, repurchase agreements, wire transfer agreements, 
collateral/depository agreements and banking service contracts.  No person may engage 
in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms of this policy and the 
procedures established by the Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration.   
 



The Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration shall be responsible for all 
transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of controls.  The Investment Policy 
shall be reviewed and approved by the City Council annually. 
 
List of Authorized Investments:  The Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
is limited to investments authorized by Act 20 of 1943, as amended, and may invest in the 
following: 
 

(a) Bonds, securities, and other obligations of the United States or an agency or 
instrumentality of the United States. 

(b) Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts, or depository of a 
financial institution.  Authorized depositories shall be designated by the City of 
Troy City Council. 

(c) Commercial paper rated at the time of purchase within the two highest 
classifications established by not less than two standard rating services and 
that matures not more than 270 days after the date of purchase. 

(d) Repurchase agreements consisting of instruments listed in (a). 
(e) Bankers’ acceptances of United States banks. 
(f) Obligations of this state or any of its political subdivisions that at the time of 

purchase are rated investment grade by not less than one standard rating 
service. 

(g) Investment pools through an inter-local agreement under the urban 
cooperation act of 1967, 1987 (Ex Sess) PA 7, MCL 124.501 to 124.512 

(h) Investment pools organized under the surplus funds investment pool act, 1982 
PA 367, 129.111 to 129.118. 

(i) The investment pools organized under the local government investment pool 
act, 1986 PA 121, MCL 129.141 to 129.150. 

 
Safekeeping and Custody:  All security transactions, including collateral for repurchase 
agreements and financial institution deposits, entered into by the Assistant City 
Manager/Finance and Administration may be on a cash basis or a delivery vs. payment 
basis as determined by the Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration.  Securities 
may be held by a third party custodian designated by the Assistant City Manager/Finance 
and Administration and evidenced by safekeeping receipts as determined by the Assistant 
City Manager/Finance and Administration. 
 
Prudence:  Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then 
prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the 
management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the 
probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived. 
 



campbellld
Text Box
E-06

















campbellld
Text Box
E-07











campbellld
Text Box
E-08











campbellld
Text Box
E-09













campbellld
Text Box
E-10











TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
 
RE: 2005-06 Budget Amendment No. 1 
 
DATE: November 16, 2005 
 
 
Upon completion of the annual audit it has been customary to present City Council a 
Budget Amendment reconciling capital projects that were estimated at budget time and 
outstanding purchase orders as of the end of the fiscal year. The attached amendments 
are for capital items that were included in the 2004-05 budget that were in various 
stages of completion at June 30, 2005 and will be completed in 2005-06. Please note 
that the attached amendments are not for projects coming in over budget. 
 
Some of the major capital expenditures requiring amendments are: 
 
 

• Major road projects – Big Beaver Rochester to Dequindre 
• Technology enhancements – Document Management 
• Drainage improvements 
• Sidewalks – New and Replacement 
• Museum – General Repairs 
• Fire – Apparatus Replacement 
• Motor Equipment Fund – Vehicle Purchases 
• Sylvan Glen Golf Course – Stream Bank Stabilization 

 
It is requested that the attached Budget Amendment be approved. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/jml\AGENDA ITEMS\2005\11.21.05 – 2005-06 Budget Amendment No. 1 

campbellld
Text Box
F-02



2005-06 BUDGET AMENDMENT NO. 1

CURRENT AMENDED
BUDGET AMENDMENT BUDGET

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

REVENUE:

FUND BALANCE
   UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED 16,106,688$     3,488,719$     12,617,969$       
     PROJECT COMMITMENTS 4,181,897         4,181,897       -                     
   RESERVE FOR ENCUMBRANCES 836,374            836,374          -                     

TOTAL AMENDMENT TO REVENUES 8,506,990$    

EXPENDITURES:

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 135,000$          100,000$        235,000$            

COMPUTER SOFTWARE 170,000            107,480          277,480             

COMPUTER CONSULTING 295,000            60,360            355,360             
267,840$        

CITY HALL

BUILDINGS AND IMPROVEMENTS 300,000$          96,500$          396,500$            

OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT

TRSF TO OTHER FUNDS - DDA DEBT SERVICE -$                 1,932,210$     1,932,210$         
TRSF TO OTHER FUNDS - PROP. C CAPITAL -                   251,100          251,100             

2,183,310$     

COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

EQUIPMENT - GENERAL 60,000$            24,340$          84,340$             

POLICE

POLICE ADMINISTRATION
     BUILDINGS & IMPROVEMENTS -$                 11,200$          11,200$             

UNIFORM PATROL
     EQUIPMENT - GENERAL 41,310              62,660            103,970             

COMMUNICATIONS
     COMPUTER SOFTWARE 80,000              127,140          207,140             
     RADIO COMMUNICATIONS 177,000            69,670            246,670             

270,670$        



CURRENT AMENDED
BUDGET AMENDMENT BUDGET

FIRE

APPARATUS REPLACEMENT 400,000$          352,230$        752,230$            

PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL REPAIRS 330,000$          231,830$        561,830$            

EQUIPMENT - GENERAL 35,000              34,330            69,330               

MAJOR ROADS 7,760,000         3,213,780       10,973,780         

LOCAL ROADS 2,813,000         277,000          3,090,000           

DRAINS 2,010,000         526,830          2,536,830           

SIDEWALKS 1,000,000         346,800          1,346,800           
4,630,570$     

PARKS AND RECREATION

PARKS & RECREATION ADMIN.
     EQUIPMENT - GENERAL 105,000$          19,280$          124,280$            
PARK DEVELOPMENT
     RAINTREE PARK -                   9,660             9,660                 
     FLYNN PARK 140,000            256,250          396,250             
     OEC 60,000              10,000            70,000               
SUBDIVISON IMPROVEMENTS
     LAND IMPROVEMENTS 2,000,000         169,700          2,169,700           
MUNICIPAL GROUNDS
     CEMETERY IMPROV. -                   30,000            30,000               
     COMPUTER IRRIGATION -                   57,650            57,650               

552,540$        
MUSEUM

EQUIPMENT - GENERAL 10,000$            9,090$            19,090$             
BUILDINGS & IMPROVEMENTS 498,000            97,280            595,280             

106,370          
LIBRARY

GENERAL REPAIRS -$                 22,620$          22,620$             

TOTAL AMENDMENT TO EXPENDITURES 8,506,990$     



CURRENT AMENDED
BUDGET AMENDMENT BUDGET

MOTOR EQUIPMENT FUND

REVENUE:

     UNRESERVED FUND BALANCE 4,325,690$       697,990$        3,627,700$         
TOTAL AMENDMENT TO REVENUES 697,990$        

EXPENSES:

VEHICLES 1,394,000$       697,990$        2,091,990$         
TOTAL AMENDMENT TO EXPENSES 697,990$        

SYLVAN GLEN GOLF COURSE

REVENUE:

     UNRESERVED FUND BALANCE 2,369,007$       206,770$        2,162,237$         
TOTAL AMENDMENT TO REVENUES 206,770$        

EXPENSES:

LAND INPROVEMENTS 128,000$          206,770$        334,770$            
TOTAL AMENDMENT TO EXPENSES 206,770$        

Amendment requested to provide funds for outstanding purchase orders at June 30, 2005, and to 
reconcile capital projects in various stages of completion at June 30, 2005. 



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISTION MINUTES – DRAFT JUNE 15, 2005 
A special meeting of the Troy Historic District Commission was held Wednesday, June 
15, 2005 at City Hall. Ann Partlan called the meeting to order at 7:30 P.M.   
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT Ann Partlan 
  Paul Lin 
  Barbara Chambers 
  Muriel Rounds 
  Marjorie Biglin 
  Robert Hudson 
  Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager 
 
 GUEST Fred Rounds, Troy Historical Society 
 
Resolution #HDC-2005-06-001 
Moved by Lin  
Seconded by Chambers 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the May 17, 2005 meeting be approved. 
Yes: 6 Partlan, Lin, Chambers, Rounds, Biglin and Hudson 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. 2004/05 Budget 
Fred Rounds presented a request from the Troy Historical Society that the Historic 
District Commission contribute $8,000 to the Society to be used for a revised site 
plan of the Troy Museum, which is an historic district and for a historic marker 
program in Troy. 

  
Resolution #HDC-2005-06-002 
Moved by Lin  
Seconded by Chambers 
 

1. RESOLVED, That the Historic District Commission allocate $8,000 to the 
Troy Historical Society to be used for the following projects: 

a. $5,000 towards completion of a new site plan for the Troy Museum & 
Historic Village, which is an historic district. 

b. $3,000 for signage of designated historic structures to be approved 
by the Historic District Commission. 

 
Yes: 6 Partlan, Lin, Chambers, Rounds, Biglin and Hudson 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



2 

 
B. Other Reports 

Loraine reported that William Davis, owner of a designated historic home has 
passed away.  
 
Allan Motzny is working on revisions to the ordinance and will have them 
available in September. 

 
 

The Troy Historic District Committee Meeting was adjourned at 8:50 p.m.  The next 
regular meeting will be held Tuesday, September 20, 2005 at 7:30 p.m. at City Hall 
Conference Room C. 

 
 
                  
Anne Partlan 
Chairperson 

 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL SEPTEMBER 20, 2005 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Historic District Commission was not held Tuesday, 
September 20, 2005 at City Hall because they lacked a quorum. 
 
 

 
 
The next regular meeting will be held Tuesday, October 18, 2004 at 7:30 p.m. at City 
Hall. 
 

 
 
 
 
                  
Anne Partlan 
Chairman 
 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Final October 12, 2005 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, October 12, 2005, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI.   
The meeting was called to order at 12:12 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT: Mark Calice  
 Michael Geise 
 Thomas Houghton, Chair 
 John M. Lamerato 
 William R. Need 
 Steven A. Pallotta 
 Louise E. Schilling 
 John Szerlag  
 
 
 
MINUTES 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 10 - 037 
Moved by Szerlag 
Seconded by Geise 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the September 14, 2005 meeting be approved.  
 
Yeas:  All  7 
  
 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – FORD & EARL PROPERTY 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 10 - 038  
Moved by Pallotta 
Seconded by Calice 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board authorize Douglas Smith to negotiate the sale of the Ford & 
Earl property. 
 
Yeas:  All  7 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Final October 12, 2005 
 
 

 2

INVESTMENTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 10 - 039  
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Szerlag 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board sell and place a stop/loss for the following securities:   
 
Sell:   25,000 shares Oracle; 20,000 Flagstar Bank; Cardinal Health; CMS Energy; 10,000 

shares Corning; 3,000 General Motors; Kimco Realty. 
 
Stop/Loss:  of $7.50 on Compuware. 
 
Yeas:  All  7 
 
 
 
 
The next meeting is November 9, 2005 at 12:00 p.m. at City Hall, Conference Room C, 
500 W Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:25 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Thomas Houghton, Chairman 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
John M. Lamerato, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\2005\10-12-05 Minutes_Final.doc 



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - FINAL                                                   October 13, 2005 
PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 

 
A regular meeting of the Troy Parks and Recreation Advisory Board was held Thursday, 
October 13, 2005 at the Troy Community Center, room 503.  Chairwoman, Kathleen Fejes 
called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
Present:  Merrill Dixon, member  Kathleen Fejes, member 
   Gary Hauff, member  Brad Henson, member 
   Tom, Krent, member  Jeff Stewart, member 
   Jan Zikakis, member  Jeff Biegler, staff 
   Stuart Alderman, staff  Carol K. Anderson, staff 
    
Absent:  Tod Gazetti, Rusty Kaltsounis, Meaghan Kovacs, and Stuart Redpath.   
 
Visitors:   
 
Resolution # PR - 2005 - 10 - 016 
Moved by Krent 
Seconded by Zikakis 
 
RESOLVED, that the minutes from May 12, 2005 are approved as submitted.   
 
Yeas:   All 
Nays:   None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
A.  Ad Hoc Committee - Merrill Dixon and Rusty Kaltsounis have volunteered to be on a 
committee that will review small parcels that could be used as “pocket parks.”  They will review 
options for use and funding for maintenance then report back to City Council on their 
recommendations.   
 
B.  Elections -  
 
Resolution # PR - 2005 - 10 - 017 
Moved by Dixon 
Seconded by Hauff 
 
RESOLVED, that Tom Krent is elected chairman beginning with the November meeting.   
 
Ayes:   All 
Nays:   None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # PR - 2005 - 10 - 018 
Moved by Fejes 
Seconded by Krent 
 
RESOLVED, that Jan Zikakis is elected vice-chairperson beginning with the November meeting.   
 
Ayes:   All 
Nays:   None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - FINAL                                                   October 13, 2005 
 
C.  Aquatic Center Admission Report - Admissions at the Aquatic Center this season were 
higher compared to last season.  This is likely due to the warmer weather this summer.  The 
early bird pass rates will be offered again this December to encourage pass sales.   
 
D.  Park Board Meetings/Time - There is a schedule conflict with upcoming Park Board 
meetings and Futures meetings.  Discussion followed regarding changing the time and days of 
the Park Board meetings.  It was agreed that November’s meeting would be on Wednesday, 
November 9, 2005 at 7:30 p.m.  Future Park Board meetings that need to be changed will be 
discussed at that time.   
 
OLD BUSINESS 
A.  Master Plan - Surveys were sent to Troy residents and businesses for input on what they 
would like to see in the parks.  The surveys were mailed to residents in every section of the city.  
When the survey results are compiled, we will have useful information on what is 
wanted/needed in our parks.   
 
B.  Shuffleboard/Bocce - Staff is currently developing specs for two bocce courts and two 
shuffleboard courts.  If approved by City Council, development will begin this spring on the west 
side of the Community Center.   
 
Member Comments - Tom Krent commented on how well the landscaping along the major 
roads and medians of Troy, designed by Ron Hynd, looked this past summer.  He took pictures 
of the landscaping and passed them around for the Park Board to see.   
 
Jan Zikakis asked if the Evening Primrose Club could help plant bulbs and hostas in the new 
Heritage Park.  This gardening club will volunteer their time to beautify this park for the residents 
of Troy.   
 
Staff Reports 
A.  Directors Report - Ash tree removal from each section of the city is done with the exception 
of the northwest quadrant of the city.  We are replacing 800 trees this fall and 2500 in the spring, 
which will be 15 to 20 percent of the total trees removed.  Replacement will be slower than the 
removal.   
 
The Futures Committee is reviewing lifestyle trends and the activities we offer.  Some things to 
consider in Parks and Recreation:  

 Recreational activities will need to change as the community ages and we meet 
demands for seniors in the types of activities and programs we offer.   

 The community will want to attract and keep young, single working people in the city 
and this department will play an important role by offering diverse cultural and 
outcome based activities.   

 
B.  Recreation Report - The Doggy Water Extravaganza held after the Labor Day holiday was a 
huge success.  More than 160 dogs and their owners participated in this activity.   
 
During the week of annual maintenance, the fitness area underwent a deep cleaning.  Thirteen 
new treadmills were purchased to replace worn ones.   
 
 



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - FINAL                                                   October 13, 2005 
 
The winter bulletin will be mailed next month and winter registration will begin at the end of 
November.   
 
Danielle Cooper, an 11-year-old Troy resident, won the PPK competition and will be going to the 
state competition at Ford Field on December 4th.   
 
C.  Parks Report - The skate park has a new half-pipe.  This was purchased with the $20,000  
K-mart donation, $14,000 raised by residents, and the balance from the department budget.   
 
Ash tree removal is ahead of schedule.  Over the past two years the contractor J. H. Hart has 
removed 7200 trees and staff has removed 6800 trees.  There are only four sections in the 
northwest quadrant of the city remaining for ash tree removal.   
 
A new 16 foot wide turf mower has been purchased to facilitate faster mowing of the larger 
parcels of the city.   
 
Correspondence 
The Senior Advisory Committee wrote a letter to City Council regarding bringing food to the 
Community Center for non-profit groups.  Ms. Anderson explained that the City is contractually 
bound to not allow food except in the rooms where it was pre-agreed.   
 
Resolution # PR - 2005 - 019 
Moved by Dixon 
Seconded by Zikakis 
 
RESOLVED, that absent members are excused.   
 
Ayes:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:50 p.m. 
 
_________________________________ 
Tom Krent, Chairman 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Mary Williams, Recording Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 25, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 6:00 p.m. on October 25, 2005 at the southeast corner of Rochester Road and 
South Boulevard, Troy, Michigan.   
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Robert Schultz Gary Chamberlain 
Thomas Strat Lynn Drake-Batts 
Mark J. Vleck Fazal Khan 
 Lawrence Littman 
 David T. Waller 
 Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
 

 
The site visit of the proposed Caswell Town Center, PUD 5, was not conducted because of 
lack of a quorum. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Draft\10-25-05 Special Meeting_PUD 5 Site Visit_Caswell Town Center.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 25, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:35 p.m. on October 25, 2005 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts Gary Chamberlain 
Lawrence Littman Fazal Khan 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-166 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Chamberlain and Khan are excused from attendance 
at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mr. Miller requested that the Agenda be revised to include item 8(a), Report on the 
Site Visit of the proposed PUD 5, Caswell Town Center. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-167 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as revised.   

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 25, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-168 
Moved by:  Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the October 4, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes and 
the October 11, 2005 Regular Meeting minutes as published. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain, Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Items not on the Agenda) 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Wright reported on the October 18, 2005 Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) 
meeting.  One item of interest relates to the Arnold Becker property located on the 
southeast corner of Big Beaver and Rochester Road (2840-2880 Rochester Road).  
The BZA approved the request to waive the required screen wall on the north side 
of the parking area where the parking lot abuts Henrietta.  The petitioner withdrew 
his request to modify the required setback of 25 feet from the north property line to 
10 feet.   
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the October 17, 2005 Joint Meeting of the Downtown 
Development Authority (DDA) and City Council and the October 19, 2005 DDA 
Meeting.  Discussions at both meetings related to amending the DDA boundaries. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 25, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the following: 
 
• ZOTA 216 Additional Retail along Major Thoroughfares in M-1 (Light Industrial) 

Zoning District – Approved by City Council, 10/24/05; Planning Commission 
recommendation was modified by City Council.   
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief overview of the modifications and said he would forward 
the Resolution passed by City Council to the members.  There was discussion on 
the presentation to the City Council with respect to the recommendation of the 
Planning Commission and the City Management version.  

 
• Z 709 Rezoning Request, South side of Woodslee Street, East of Rochester Road, 

Section 27, M-1 to R-2 – Approved by City Council, 10/17/05.  
• Z 708 Rezoning Request, North side of Maple, West of Blaney, Section 29, M-1 to 

B-3 – Approved by City Council, 10/17/05.   
• ZOTA 201, Commercial Indoor Recreation in M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District 

– Scheduled for City Council Public Hearing, 11/14/05.  
• PUD 4, The Monarch Private Residences – Tentatively scheduled for City Council 

Final Approval in November 2005.   
 
 

8. (a) PUD 5, Caswell Town Center, Site Visit 
 
Mr. Miller reported that a site visit was not conducted this evening because a 
quorum was not present.   
 
Members and staff who walked the site identified the following site development 
concerns: 
• Parking for banquet center. 
• Stub streets that touch the property from the east and south 
• Retention and swale areas.  
 
 

TABLED ITEM 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 710) – Existing Shopping Center 
(to include proposed Marshall’s Music store), Northeast corner of Rochester Road 
and Wattles Road (4048-4060 Rochester Road), Section 14 – From B-1 (Local 
Business) to B-2 (Community Business) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the rezoning request that was tabled at the 
October 11, 2005 Regular Meeting.  The applicant’s request for interpretation of the 
Zoning Ordinance is on the November 15, 2005 Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) 
agenda.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of the City Management 
to approve the rezoning request.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 25, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

The petitioner was not present. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-169 
Moved by:  Wright 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To table the item to the November 29, 2005 Regular Meeting to allow 
the Board of Zoning Appeals to address the issue.  
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Wright said he sees no need to rezone the property, and said Marshal’s Music 
store is no more out of place in the B-1 zoning district than Kinko’s, Blockbuster, or 
some of the other businesses in the shopping center.   
 
There was a lengthy discussion and comments from around the table with respect 
to going forward with the rezoning request to City Council, obtaining an 
interpretation from the BZA independently or simultaneously with the rezoning 
request, the intent of the petitioner to remain in the City, and the review of all B-1 
zoning districts.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Littman 
No: Drake-Batts, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller, Wright 
Absent: Chamberlain, Khan 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Mr. Wright said he would support either action that would get Marshall’s Music in 
the shopping center.  He personally feels an interpretation from the BZA would be 
appropriate and the most expeditious action to take.   
 
Members Schultz, Vleck and Drake-Batts agreed that going forward concurrently on 
both the BZA interpretation and the rezoning request is in the best interest of the 
City and most expeditious.   
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 25, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-10-170 
Moved by: Schultz  
Seconded by: Waller 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission feels that it is of the utmost importance to the 
economic viability of the City of Troy to encourage desirable businesses to remain 
and/or locate in the City.  Furthermore, the City Management should do everything 
within its powers to simplify and expedite the processes businesses must follow to 
establish and/or relocate their operations in our City; 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission disagrees with the Building Department’s 
decision that Marshall’s Music does not meet the criteria for locating within the B-1 
(Community Business) zoning district, while the same department has ruled that 
Blockbuster Video and FedEx/Kinko’s meet those criteria.  While the Planning 
Commission has recommended and requested that the Board of Zoning Appeals 
provide an interpretation of the B-1 zoning district as it applies to Marshall’s Music, 
that interpretation will not take place until Tuesday, November 15, 2005; 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the citizens of Troy to expedite the ability of 
Marshall’s Music to relocate their business to a new facility within the City.  
Furthermore, because the most expeditious means of accomplishing same is to 
recommend the rezoning of the parcel in question from B-1 to B-2 and rezoning that 
parcel does not create a non-conformity with relation to the new zoning distract;  
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby 
recommends to the City Council that the B-1 to B-2 rezoning request, located on the 
northeast corner of Rochester and Wattles, within Section 14, being approximately 
2.7 acres in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain, Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 214-B) – 
Articles 04.20.00 and 10.30.00, Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E 
Districts on a Temporary Basis  
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the Resolution adopted by City Council on October 3, 2005 that 
requested the Planning Commission to set a Public Hearing on a proposed zoning 
ordinance text amendment that would allow group day care homes in the R-1A 
through R-1E districts on a temporary basis.  He said the amendment would 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 25, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

essentially legalize the approximate 20 group day care homes currently licensed 
and existing at the time the amendment is adopted by City Council.   
 
Discussed at length were the following two conditions of the proposed amendment: 
 
• The date of final action by City Council that would affect the existing group day 

care homes. 
• The timeframe the temporary basis would be in affect after City Council takes 

final action.   
 
Mr. Motzny said consideration and approval of the proposed amendment should be 
based on whether the members believe a public purpose would be served.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
John Bjelobrk of 5581 Mandale, Troy, was present.  Mr. Bjelobrk asked how many 
members of the Planning Commission live next door to or within 300 feet of a family 
or group day care home.  He also asked if any member of the Planning Commission 
has a friend or relative who operates a day care center.  Mr. Bjelobrk said he would 
be willing to swap houses with Chair Strat so he would have the opportunity to 
experience living next to a group day care home.  He voiced concern with the City 
procedure to notify only those residents living within 300 feet of existing group day 
care homes, and said the issue should be placed on a city-wide ballot.  Mr. Bjelobrk 
voiced concern that a fire in a group day care home would jeopardize his family’s 
safety and affect the cost of his insurance coverage.  He asked that group day care 
homes not be grandfathered.  Mr. Bjelobrk addressed traffic, noise, and parking 
concerns, and encouraged parents to raise their own children.   
 
Curtis Childs of 1931 Atlas Court, Troy, was present.  Mr. Childs said approximately 
800 homes have been receiving the Public Hearing notices and very few negative 
responses have come forward.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-   
Moved by: Drake-Batts 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Articles IV and X, pertaining to Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A 
through R-1E Zoning Districts on a Temporary Basis, be amended as follows:   
 

1. To remove “[Date of Final Action by City Council]” and replace and 
substitute it with “[The Approval of ZOTA 214-B by City Council]”. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 25, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Waller asked that the Resolution be amended to change all entries of 10 days to 
100 days, with reference to the timeframe of the temporary basis after the Troy City 
Council has had the opportunity to conduct a Public Hearing and take final action.   
 
A brief discussion followed on the wording of the zoning ordinance text amendment.   
 
Mr. Motzny suggested a recess to prepare the appropriate wording of the 
Resolution. 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:50 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:02 p.m. 

___________ 
 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts withdrew the motion on the floor.  Mr. Littman was in agreement 
with the withdrawal. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-171 
Moved by: Drake-Batts 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That group day care homes as defined in Section 04.20.69, licensed 
by the State of Michigan and in operation as of the date of approval of ZOTA 214-B 
by City Council, shall be permitted to continue on a temporary basis not to exceed 
thirty (30) days after the Troy City Council has had the opportunity to conduct a 
Public Hearing and take final action on any proposed revisions to Charter 39, Article 
X, related to the regulation of group day care homes as set forth in ZOTA 214.  
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: Wright 
Absent: Chamberlain, Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Wright said the Planning Department has received several letters from 
neighbors who are opposed to group day care homes because of traffic, parking, 
and noise.  Mr. Wright said he personally thinks a group day care home is a 
commercial enterprise that should not exist in a residential zone. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 25, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

10. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 214) – Articles 04.20.00 and 
10.30.00, Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E District 
 
Mr. Miller outlined the list of potential group day care home standards that were 
compiled at the October 4, 2005 Special/Study Meeting.  He reviewed the draft 
amendment prepared by the Planning Department and summarized minor revisions 
that were incorporated into the draft.   
 
Chair Strat solicited comments from around the table with respect to each standard 
listed in relation to group day care homes.   
 
[Mr. Miller exited the meeting at 9:40 p.m.] 
 
Thorough notes were taken by staff and the revised draft will be reviewed and 
discussed at the November 1, 2005 Special/Study Meeting.   
 
Mr. Motzny will report back on the use of Special Conditions and Special Use 
Approvals on a renewal basis.   
 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION BY-LAWS 
 
Mr. Waller distributed copies of the original and revised By-laws.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-172 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That this item be tabled until the next meeting so that the members 
have an opportunity to review the revisions that were presented tonight by Mr. 
Waller.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain, Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

12. REVIEW OF NOVEMBER 29, 2005 REGULAR MEETING 
 
Upcoming agenda items were briefly reviewed. 
 
 

13. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items on the Agenda 
 
David Schafer of 5593 Mandale, Troy, was present.  Mr. Schafer addressed the group 
day care home matter.  He said he would appreciate getting a copy of the proposed 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 25, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

zoning ordinance text so group day care home providers would have an opportunity to 
provide informative input.  Mr. Schafer also asked for copies of the negative letters 
and emails received by the Planning Department so providers can see the nature of 
the complaints and address them.   
 
Curtis Childs of 1931 Atlas Court, Troy, was present.  Mr. Childs addressed comments 
made at tonight’s meeting relating to group day care homes.  He said fires can happen 
anywhere, and traffic on public roads cannot be regulated.  Mr. Childs said it would 
seem more practical that residents would be concerned if their neighbors did not clear 
snow.  Mr. Childs requested consideration be given to grandfathering some of the 
existing day care homes and addressed a concern with the required 1,500-foot 
distance between day care homes.  Mr. Childs noted that the City of Livonia ordinance 
makes no mention of building inspections or Michigan Building Codes, and has 
successfully worked since 1999.  He encouraged members not to over-regulate the 
ordinance.   
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Littman said he once had lunch as chair of the Planning Commission with the City 
Manager, who took offense at a comment he made.  His comment was it seems that 
sometimes the City Manager considers the Planning Commission a necessary evil.  Mr. 
Littman said he would revise that now.  He thinks the City Manager thinks the Planning 
Commission is an unnecessary evil.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said she would figure out something to do with her Tuesday evenings.   
 
Chair Strat said he is sure he will hear something about the comments he made this 
evening, but he had to air his frustrations.  
 
Mr. Littman said it’s not based strictly on last week, it’s been building.  He said you have to 
have been chair, as many members have been, to really get frustrated with it. 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:29 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Draft\10-25-05 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:32 p.m. on November 1, 2005 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Wayne Wright 
Lynn Drake-Batts 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Christopher Kulesza, Student Representative 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-173 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Wright is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2.  PUBLIC COMMENTS (Items not on the Agenda) 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

3. ROCHESTER ROAD FUTURE LAND USE PLAN AMENDMENT 
 
Mr. Miller revisited the list of Problems and Opportunities that was created by the 
Planning Commission at the August 23, 2005 Special/Study Meeting.  A list of 
Findings and Trends and Goals were also briefly discussed.  There was general 
concurrence that the Planning Department should begin to develop an amendment 
to the Future Land Use Plan that included a mixed-use overlay district.  It was 
determined that an appropriate depth for the mixed-use district would be similar to 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

the depth of the commercial property on the northwest corner of Square Lake and 
Rochester Roads.  
 
Mr. Chamberlain suggested that since the section of Rochester Road between Long 
Lake and Square Lake mirrors the section between Square Lake Road and South 
Boulevard, it should be included in the Future Land Use Plan amendment.  General 
discussion followed. 
 
The Planning Commission asked the Planning Department to prepare a memo to 
City Council informing them of the desire of the Planning Commission to expand the 
study area.  Furthermore, the memo should explain that the proposed March 
deadline to complete the amendment would be difficult to meet whether or not the 
study area was expanded. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-174 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, That the study area of the Future Land Use Plan amendment for 
Rochester Road between Square Lake Road and South Boulevard be expanded to 
include the section of Rochester Road between Long Lake Road and Square Lake 
Road, therefore making it a two-mile strip rather than a one-mile strip for a mixed-
use district, including appropriate depth, space and location standards. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

4. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 5) – Proposed Caswell Town Center 
including 14 single family homes, 74 condominium units, ±19,000 s.f. retail space 
and the existing Petruzzello’s Banquet Center, Southeast corner of Rochester Road 
and South Blvd., Section 2 – B-3 (General Business), P-1 (Vehicular Parking) and 
R-1D (One Family Residential) Districts 
 
Brad Byarski of Michigan Home Builders made a brief presentation on the proposed 
project.  General discussion followed the presentation. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain suggested a gateway entrance sign would greatly enhance the major 
intersection.  Mr. Byarski agreed a gateway sign would be an appropriate 
improvement. 
 
Mr. Schultz said, based on his experience of living in condominium developments for 
the last 32 years, he does not believe there is enough guest parking on the site.  Mr. 
Schultz expressed concern over the trees proposed to be saved within the 20-foot 
wide greenbelt along the north and south property lines in the single-family portion of 
the property.  



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Chair Strat asked whether storm water runoff from the condominium units would flow 
east into the bioswale and then south into the retention basin. 
 
John Hennessey, Project Engineer, 2674 West Jefferson Avenue, Trenton, responded 
in the affirmative. 
 
Chair Strat asked why a bioswale was not used along the southern property line of the 
single-family residential area.   
 
Mr. Hennessey responded that this area is 3 feet lower than the retention pond and 
water would therefore not flow to the pond. 
 
Mr. Littman asked if the Planning Commission would have the opportunity to review 
the proposed changes should the bank change the number of drive-thru lanes after 
receiving Final PUD Approval.   
 
Mr. Miller responded that if any significant changes were proposed for the project 
following Final PUD Approval, an amendment would require a recommendation by the 
Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Waller asked if any of the uses would require site plan approval following PUD 
approval. 
 
Mr. Miller responded that Final PUD approval includes Final Site Plan Approval for 
each of the proposed uses. 
 
 

5. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 214) – Articles 04.20.00 and 
10.30.00, Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E Districts 
 
Mr. Miller presented the report that was prepared for the Planning Commission for the 
meeting.  General discussion followed.  The Planning Commission discussed each 
proposed provision separately and voted on each item.  The Planning Department 
indicated they would make the proposed changes and bring the draft ZOTA 214 back 
to the Planning Commission for the November 29, 2005 Regular Meeting. 
 
Mr. Littman disagreed with the inclusion of the list of Planning Commission actions on 
ZOTA 214.  He suggested that the information was misleading.  General discussion 
followed.  
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-175 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission produce its own record of the meetings of 
ZOTA 214 as to what was and was not done with the ZOTA at different meetings 
and that the attached record not become part of the minutes or public record. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Yes: Khan, Littman, Strat, Vleck 
No: Drake-Batts, Schultz, Waller 
Abstain: Chamberlain 
Absent: Wright  
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
 

6. PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT – Landscape Screening 
of Off Street Parking 
 
Mr. Savidant led a discussion relating to landscape screening of off-street parking 
areas.  The intent of the discussion was to provide direction to the Planning 
Department for preparation of a draft ZOTA.  The following Items were discussed: 
 
• Applicability. 
• Type of Screening. 
• Species. 
• Height. 
• Plant alternatives. 
• Parking lot trees. 
• Maintenance. 
 
The Planning Department will prepare a draft ZOTA based on this input. 
 
 

7. PLANNING COMMISSION BY-LAWS 
 
Mr. Waller indicated that he received the comments on the proposed revisions that 
were prepared by the Assistant City Attorney.  He will incorporate the proposed 
revisions and email the revised text to the Planning Commission.  
 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Waller indicated that the Beavers were on display in the center court of Somerset 
North.  There would be an auction at Somerset North on Saturday, November 5, from 6:00 
p.m. to 9:00 p.m. 
 
Mr. Khan indicated that he received three phone calls from people who had seen the 
Beaver he sponsored.  He was offered work in Troy as a result of the phone calls but was 
unable to take the work because of his position on the Troy Planning Commission. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Mr. Chamberlain reminded those in attendance at the meeting and watching on television 
that he did not want any contact or communication related to his position as a Planning 
Commissioner at his home, be it through email, telephone, letters or personal contact. 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:55 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Draft\11-01-05 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL EXPENSE REPORT
Month of September, 2005

Council Person Expense  Date Purpose Amount Totals

Beltramini, Robin 9/6/2005 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 123.72$           
Oct - Dec, 2005

123.72$             
Broomfield, Cristina 9/6/2005

Eisenbacher, David -$                 

Howrylak, Martin F. -$                 

Lambert, David 9/6/2005 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 212.85$           
Oct - Dec, 2005

212.85$             
Schilling, Louise E. 9/6/2005 Quarterly DSL Line 89.85$             

Oct - Dec, 2005

89.85$               
Stine, Jeanne M. 9/6/2005 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 119.85$           

Oct - Dec, 2005

119.85$             

Total for Month 546.27$            

NOTE: This report is presented in compliance with Rules of Procedure for the City Council,
            Item 18. Miscellaneous Expenses

Date Prepared: 10/31/2005
Final Preparation By: J. Nash

S://Finance/Template - City Council monthly expense report.xls

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



























campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-03c



campbellld
Text Box
J-03d



campbellld
Text Box
J-03e



campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
J-03f



mccombca
Text Box
J-05







campbellld
Text Box
J-06




























	AGENDA: November 21, 2005
	GOALS
	AGENDA:  Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	a\) National Red Ribbon Campaign – Troy �


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 34551 Dequindre
	C-2 Parking Variance – 1414 Combermere
	C-3 Rezoning Application – Northeast Corner of Rochester Roa
	C-4 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 214-B) – Article I

	POSTPONED ITEMS:  No Postponed Items
	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  No Proclamations P
	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  A�

	E-5 City of Troy Investment Policy and Establishment of Inve
	E-6 Request for Acceptance of Four Utility Easements from Ga
	E-7 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed from Deagle Deve
	E-8 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Waterma
	E-9 Private Agreement for HCR Manor Care – Project No. 02.93
	E-10 Request for Acceptance of Two Permanent Easements for S

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA); Planning Commission No Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appo
	F-2 2005-2006 Budget Amendment No. 1

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  No Announcements Submi
	G-2 Green Memorandums: No Memorandums Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Troy Historic District Commission/Draft – June 15, 2005
	Troy Historic District Commission/Final – September 20, 2005
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – Octob
	Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – October 13, 2005
	Planning Commission Special/Draft – October 25, 2005
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – October 25, 2005
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – November 1, 2005

	J-2 Department Reports:
	a\)  Finance Department – City Council E�
	b\)  City of Troy Monthly Financial Repo�

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Paula Komar Regar
	Letter of Thanks to Tonni Bartholomew and Barbara Holmes fro
	Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Bettie Goss, Assi
	Letter of Thanks to Tonni Bartholomew from Marilyn Henry, In
	Letter of Thanks to Detective Steve Brandimore from the Clac
	Letter of Thanks to Kathleen Bobick from Fanica Bleanda, In 

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested




